
Issued Tuesday, 21 June 2022 

  
Scan code to view reports 

 
 
 
Tuesday, 21 June 2022 
 
To All Councillors: 
 
As a Member or Substitute of the Community & Environment Committee, please treat 
this as your summons to attend a meeting on Wednesday, 29 June 2022 at 6.00 pm in 
the Council Chamber, Town Hall, Matlock, DE4 3NN 
 
Yours sincerely, 

 

 
James McLaughlin 
Director of Corporate and Customer Services 
 
 
This information is available free of charge in electronic, audio, Braille and 
large print versions, on request. 
 

For assistance in understanding or reading this document or specific 
information about this Agenda or on the “Public Participation” initiative please 
call the Committee Team on 01629 761133 or email 
committee@derbyshiredales.gov.uk 
 
AGENDA 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Please advise the Democratic Services Team on 01629 761133 or email 
committee@derbyhiredales.gov.uk of any apologies for absence. 
 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
06 April 2022 
  
  
 
 
 

1

mailto:committee@derbyshiredales.gov.uk
mailto:committee@derbyhiredales.gov.uk


 

3. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
To enable members of the public to ask questions, express views or present petitions, IF 
NOTICE HAS BEEN GIVEN, (by telephone, in writing or by email) BY NO LATER THAN 
12 NOON OF THE WORKING DAY PRECEDING THE MEETING. As per Procedural 
Rule 14.4 at any one meeting no person may submit more than 3 questions and no more 
than 1 such question may be asked on behalf of one organisation. 
 
4. INTERESTS  
 
Members are required to declare the existence and nature of any interests they may have 
in subsequent agenda items in accordance with the District Council’s Code of Conduct. 
Those interests are matters that relate to money or that which can be valued in money, 
affecting the Member, her/his partner, extended family and close friends. Interests that 
become apparent at a later stage in the proceedings may be declared at the time. 
 
5. QUESTIONS PURSUANT TO RULE OF PROCEDURE NUMBER 15  
 
To answer questions from Members who have given the appropriate notice.  
 
6. LEVELLING UP FUND ROUND 2 BID SUBMISSION (Pages 5 - 70) 
 
In the context of the approved Economic Recovery Plan for the Derbyshire Dales, to 
approve for submission the District Council’s bid to Round 2 of the Government’s Levelling 
Up Fund by the closing date of 6 July. 
 
7. PARISH COUNCIL REIMBURSABLE EXPENDITURE SCHEME (Pages 71 - 76) 
 
This report considers an application from Calver Parish Council for funding in respect of 
the cost of the maintenance of a newly acquired village green. 
 
8. AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT AREA, ASHBOURNE - UPDATING REPORT 

(Pages 77 - 82) 
 
This report updates Members on the actions taken following the declaration of an Air 
Quality Management Area in Ashbourne at the meeting of this Committee on 7 April 2021. 
 
9. ANNUAL LEISURE REPORT 2021/22 (Pages 83 - 102) 
 
This is an annual report to provide an update on the performance of the four leisure 
centres within the district, from 1 April 2021 – 30 March 2022. These leisure centres are 
now operated by Freedom Leisure. 
 
 
Members of the Committee - Councillors Matt Buckler, Sue Bull, Martin Burfoot, Neil 
Buttle, Helen Froggatt (Chair), Chris Furness (Vice-Chair), Susan Hobson, David Hughes, 
Tony Morley, Dermot Murphy, Peter O'Brien, Garry Purdy, Mike Ratcliffe, Janet Rose, 
Andrew Statham, Alasdair Sutton and Steve Wain 
 
Substitutes – Councillors Jacqueline Allison, Robert Archer, Sue Burfoot, Richard 
FitzHerbert, Alyson Hill, Peter Slack and Colin Swindell 
 

2



 

NOTE 
 
For further information about this Agenda or on “Public Participation” call 01629 761133 or 
email committee@derbyshiredales.gov.uk 
 

3

mailto:committee@derbyshiredales.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



NOT CONFIDENTIAL – For public release   
 
COMMUNITY AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE  
29 JUNE 2022 
 
Report of the Director of Regeneration and Policy 
 
 
LEVELLING UP FUND ROUND 2 BID SUBMISSION 
 
PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
In the context of the approved Economic Recovery Plan for the Derbyshire Dales, to 
approve for submission the District Council’s bid to Round 2 of the Government’s 
Levelling Up Fund by the closing date of 6 July. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
1. The Levelling Up Fund Round 2 bid is approved for submission 
2. Authority is delegated to the Director of Regeneration and Policy to make detailed 

changes prior to bid submission 
3. Authority is delegated to the Director of Corporate and Customer Services to 

agree Heads of Terms or a Memorandum of Understanding with Ashbourne 
Methodist Church prior to bid submission 

4. The project pipeline is noted. 
 
WARDS AFFECTED 
 
All 
 
STRATEGIC LINK 
 
‘Prosperity’ is highlighted in the Corporate Plan 2020-24 as a District Council priority 
due to low local wages and high local house prices.  With regard to the 
recommendations in this report, the District Council specifically aims to: Support 
businesses to encourage productivity, growth, and higher wage jobs in rural and urban 
locations; and to Promote investment to stimulate the economy of our market towns. 
 
 
1 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 At its meeting on 6 April 2022, the Community and Environment Committee 

resolved that the District Council should make a Levelling Up Fund bid based on 
projects in Ashbourne town centre: public realm and highway improvements, and 
a new community and cultural hub. 

 
1.2 Members will recall that the Levelling Up Fund is for infrastructure (capital) 

projects that have a visible impact, and that the Derbyshire Dales has been 
designated a Tier 1 priority area for the Fund.  Nevertheless, the Fund is 
competitive and grants are subject to a bidding process.  Bids close on 6 July 

5

Agenda Item 6



and only those that score highest on the Government’s criteria will have a chance 
of success.  Successful bids are expected to be announced in the Autumn. 

 
1.3 A chronology to date: 

  April 2021 – Council approved preparation of a District Council bid to the 
Levelling Up Fund (LUF) round 2, for a “coherent, strategic package of capital 
schemes to regenerate Derbyshire Dales market towns” 

  November 2021 – sought project proposals from all market towns across the 
district which met anticipated Fund criteria and might be ‘bid ready’ within 
anticipated timescales.  Initial sift showed potential projects in Ashbourne and 
Matlock 

  January/February 2022 – additional resources appointed to explore the 
potential of these projects.  Site visits, workshop and analysis were undertaken 

  February 2022 – Community and Environment Committee agreed a 
recommendation to undertake further work before making a decision on which 
projects to select 

  March 2022 – Member Workshop held 
  April 2022 – Community and Environment Committee selected Ashbourne town 

centre projects as the bid focus in order to create the strongest possible 
Levelling Up Fund bid from the District Council 

  April/May 2022 – Ashbourne projects refined with the aim of strengthening the 
bid 

  June 2022 – second Member Workshop held. 
 
1.4 Good progress has been made in defining projects and finalising designs so that 

they can be costed for the bid.  Continued positive stakeholder engagement has 
continued, including Ashbourne Town Team, AshCom and Ashbourne Town 
Council.  Sarah Dines MP has also been regularly updated and remains 
supportive.  Liaison with Derbyshire County Council is ongoing, with their Place 
department being part of the bid team.  Additional letters of support are being 
sought, following helpful suggestions at the recent Members Workshop. 

 
1.5 Technical aspects of bid preparation have taken place in the background, 

including a value for money framework, business case, and subsidy assessment. 
 
1.6 As a result, a draft bid has been completed and is submitted to Members for 

approval.  Whilst final details will need to be added before 6 July, the bid is largely 
as presented at the Member Workshop.  Sections of the bid template yet to be 
completed are all in hand, and will continue to be refined as the projects 
themselves undergo continual refinement with partners, which has been an 
ongoing process. 

 
1.7 The bid from Derbyshire Dales District Council for round two of the Levelling Up 

Fund is centred on a package of projects in Ashbourne town centre.  Together 
they are aimed at reversing decline, creating vibrancy and reasons to visit within 
a safe and well-connected environment, and restoring pride in place.  The 
projects are summarised in the following sections, with details in Appendix 1. 

 
2 LEVELLING UP FUND BID 

6



 
 Public realm and highways transformation 
 
2.1 This project will deliver a series of transformed public spaces including the 

Market Place, Victoria Square, Millennium Square and Shrovetide Walk.  
Connections between these spaces will also be improved.  This project is led by 
Derbyshire Dales District Council.  It has been costed at £5.04 million. 

 
2.2 A comprehensive set of highways improvements along Compton, Dig Street and 

St John Street will create a far better pedestrian experience, reducing the impact 
of vehicles and improving safety.  This project is led by Derbyshire County 
Council.  It has been costed at £4.38 million. 

 
2.3 Together, these changes will celebrate the town’s heritage whilst enabling a wide 

variety of future events to bring vibrancy to the centre of the town.  They will 
create an environment where businesses will want to locate and invest, and 
residents and visitors spend time, whilst supporting the local economy. 

 
 A new community hub 
 
2.4 This project will transform the Methodist Church into a multi-purpose community 

space, providing a wide range of event and meeting spaces, a performance 
venue and flexible work areas with high quality digital provision.  This project is 
led by Ashbourne Methodist Church.  It has been costed at £6.00 million. 

 
2.5 The hub will also link to a range of sustainable transport options to improve 

connectivity, including charging for e-bikes and scooters and connections to the 
Tissington Trail.  The venue will offer a fresh, modern range of accommodation 
options for groups and families, and a new outdoor riverside garden event space.   

 
2.6 The new community hub will greatly enhance the town centre offer, providing a 

venue that will drive greater footfall in the town whilst improving links to wider 
destinations. 

 
 Economic benefits 
 
2.7 The Ashbourne LUF package will generate a range of outputs and outcomes, as 

shown in Table 1: 
 

Table 1: Levelling Up Fund Outputs and Outcomes 
 Highways and Public Realm Improvements Community Hub 
Outputs New / improved pedestrian paths 

Resurfaced / improved roads 
New / improved parking spaces 
Public realm created or improved 
New trees planted 
New public WiFi hotspots installed 

Community centre space created or 
improved 
Office space created or improved 
Retail space created or improved 
Cultural space created or improved 
Heritage buildings renovated / restored 
Volunteering opportunities supported 
 

Outcomes Change in pedestrian flow 
Change in number of cyclists 
Mode shift 

Change in number of cultural events 
Change in audience numbers for cultural 
events 

7



Change in traveller experience 
Change in footfall 
Change in perceptions of place 
Change in consumer spending 
Change in business investment 

Change in footfall 
Change in perceptions of place 

 
2.8 Some of these outputs and outcomes can be converted to ‘monetisable 

economic benefits’, which are used by the Government to assess the value for 
money of public sector investment.  As the Ashbourne bid is a package bid, the 
bid as a whole and each individual project need to demonstrate Value for Money.  
The ‘monetisable economic benefits’ which apply to the Ashbourne projects are 
shown in Table 2: 

 
Table 2: Monetisable economic benefit categories and application to Ashbourne projects 
Benefit Description Highways and 

Public Realm 
Community 

Hub 
Wider land value uplift ‘Place-making’ effects, where investment has 

an impact on property values in the 
surrounding area 

 
 

Amenity benefits Benefits experienced by residents as a result of 
provision of new / improved public space   

Active mode benefits Benefits arising from increased walking / 
cycling (health benefits, reduced congestion, 
improved journey environment etc.) 

  

Wellbeing benefits from 
culture 

Wellbeing experienced by those attending 
cultural events / participating in cultural 
activities 

  

Entry to employment Improvement in wellbeing experienced by 
those moving into employment 

 
 

Social value of heritage Benefits generated through investment in 
heritage buildings / environments 

 
 

Health & community 
benefits 

Wellbeing benefits experienced by people 
participating in a range of different activities 
related to health and wellbeing 

 
 

Volunteering The benefits experienced by individuals who 
offer their time as volunteers 

 
 

 
3 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
3.1 Should the Levelling Up Fund bid succeed, the District Council would be the 

accountable body for some £15.4 million public funding.  More than £10m of this 
would be for projects delivered by a body other than the District Council (i.e. 
Derbyshire County Council and Ashbourne Methodist Church).  The latter is not 
a public authority. 

 
3.2 As a result, it is planned that the funding conditions that the Government imposes 

will be reflected in a back-to-back grant funding agreement with the Methodist 
Church.  Heads of Terms including clawback and cost overrun provisions are 
being drafted, and it is recommended that officers are given delegated authority 
to agree these (or a simpler Memorandum of Understanding) prior to bid 
submission.  A similar agreement will be required with the County Council for 
highways works.  Based on LUF round one, the Government’s funding conditions 

8



may be less onerous in terms of financial risk than other similar funding streams 
have been.  Nevertheless the District Council should take seriously the 
undertakings made in submitting a bid. 

 
3.3 Legal advice has been obtained on Subsidy Control matters (formerly State Aid), 

in particular in relation to the Methodist Church, which is to be incorporated in 
the above agreement. 

 
3.4 With regard to public realm works on District Council land, officers are mindful of 

not creating unfunded costs for the District Council.  Therefore project 
management costs for delivering the works are costed into the bid, as are an 
increase in ongoing repair and maintenance costs for improved assets.  The bid 
also accounts for inflation, fees, project monitoring and includes a contingency.  
However reliance on internal teams (including Legal, Estates and Finance) will 
be key. 

 
3.5 Improvements to the Market Place will necessitate loss of some parking spaces 

(although disabled parking spaces will be retained).  It is considered that there is 
capacity to displace parking to Shawcroft and Auction Close, and that as a 
consequence impact on District Council parking income will be minimal. 

 
3.6 Although the bid will be submitted on 6 July, it is important that work continues 

‘at risk’ in the period from July to expected award announcement (October/ 
November) in order to meet the project delivery milestones for LUF.  This will 
require continued work by the interim bid director and consultants during this 
period, so that when LUF grant is awarded projects are in a position to start 
delivery as soon as possible.  This work will include detailed site investigations, 
detailed design, consultation on proposals, any necessary consents (such as 
further/modified planning permissions and listed building consents) plus 
preparation of tender documentation, and will continue for this period under 
existing arrangements as set out in the report of 23 February 2022. 

 
4 PROJECT RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
4.1 It is a requirement of LUF that all project-related risks that may impact on the 

scheme costs should be identified and quantified.  This has been undertaken for 
this scheme.  The table in the appendix highlights the high and moderate risks 
on the project, most of which relate to the construction phase. 

 
4.2 Risks have been assessed using a workshop attended by consultants, key 

project stakeholders (including Derbyshire County Council) and Derbyshire 
Dales District Council.  This workshop was used to develop a Quantified Risk 
Assessment, ensuring that risks were not only identified and mitigated, but 
ownership was assured.   

 
4.3 This process identified areas of more significant risk and their associated 

mitigation opportunities.  Having identified scheme risks, responsibilities will be 
allocated to the most appropriate party and response plans developed.  The risk 
register will undergo periodic review and will be continually updated as the 
scheme develops to incorporate any new, mitigated, or revised risks.  

9



 
5 COMMUNICATIONS 
 
5.1 A joint approach to communications and engagement is being developed to 

ensure effective coordination between partners and consistent messages.  
Involving the District Council, Ashbourne Town Team, Ashbourne Town Council, 
AshCom and Derbyshire County Council, this will build on the strong partnership 
working that has gone into the bid development process. 

 
5.2 Coordinated communication prior to and during the construction phase will be 

essential to mitigate the impact of any disruption on the town centre. 
 
6 DEVELOPING A PROJECT PIPELINE 
 
6.1 As agreed at the April meeting of this Committee, work continues on a pipeline 

of capital projects which, whilst not able to be included in this LUF bid, are being 
progressed so that when future funding opportunities arise they are better placed 
to submit bids. 

 
6.2 In Ashbourne, these initially comprise feasibility work to consider better 

connectivity between the town centre and Waterside retail park (along Henmore 
Brook) and between the town centre and the airfield.  Both projects link well with 
the themes of the LUF bid. 

 
6.3 In Matlock, initial pipeline projects relate to the Bakewell Road cinema scheme 

and comprise public realm enhancement on footways around the cinema and 
north side of Bakewell Road; and work with Matlock Community Vision to 
progress the community room to the detailed design stage and support MCV’s 
business planning. 

 
7 RISK ASSESSMENT 
 
7.1 Legal. 
  
 This report set outs in section 3 the legal issues associated with delivering a 

successful Levelling Up Fund bid.  External legal advice has been obtained to 
clarify and mitigate legal risks in relation to the District Council’s possible 
accountable body status and subsidy control.  Heads of Terms are being 
developed with Ashbourne Methodist Church and it is anticipated these will be 
signed before bid submission; a full Agreement is being drafted and would be 
signed prior to grant acceptance.  A similar grant funding agreement will be 
required with Derbyshire County Council. 

 
 External solicitors have been instructed to:  

a) Commence preparation of the text to support the assessment of the 
Community Hub project against the Subsidy Control Principles 

b) Prepare Heads of Terms for the required Grant Funding Agreement with 
Ashbourne Methodist Church with regard to potential LUF funding to 
deliver the Community Hub element of the bid package 

10



c) Subject to agreement of Heads of Terms, prepare the Grant Funding 
Agreement for consideration by 1 August 2022. 

 
 At present, this has the status of a bid, not a contracted scheme.  Future legal 

risks have already been identified and work is underway to mitigate them prior 
to contracting.  Therefore the legal risk at this time is assessed as medium. 

 
7.2  Financial. 
  

 The bid includes £40,000 for “match funding” from the District Council in respect 
of public realm improvements at Shrovetide Walk.  This is already included in 
the approved capital programme. 
 
Should the LUF2 bid be successful, it will be necessary to seek approval from 
full Council for the other projects to be included in the capital programme.  
Financial risks will be further assessed at that time.  

 
Potential financial risks, including those associated with Accountable Body 
status as well as those associated with direct project delivery, are highlighted 
in section 3 of the report.  Work is in progress to ensure those risks are properly 
assigned and mitigated.  The financial risk of this report’ is assessed as 
medium. 

 
7.3 Corporate. 
  

 Corporate Plan priority actions for 2022/23 include “Prepare a Levelling Up 
Fund bid for submission to Government”. 

 
7.4 Climate Change. 
  
Theme Impacts 
Energy Public realm works – the works include provision of new lighting as 

part of the improved street scene.  The lighting used will replace 
some current energy inefficient lighting with low energy LEDs. 
 
Community Hub – the transformation of the Methodist Church into a 
multi-purpose community space will include works to improve the 
thermal fabric of the building, improving energy efficiency.  The works 
have been subject to a planning application which will have 
considered in detail the energy use of the building in accordance with 
current Building Regulations. 

Influence - 
communication & 
engagement 

Whilst this project is primarily focussed on economic regeneration 
and the improvement of place, it does support a shift in the private 
car being ‘king’ in Ashbourne to a town centre that residents feel safe 
and comfortable to access on foot.  The tree planting and planters 
will create a more ‘natural’ feel to the built environment encouraging 
residents and visitors to engage with nature.  The new open/green 
space (part of the community hub) and planters could be developed 
to include ‘pollinator’ friendly species? 
 
The project is also seeking to make sure that people moving into the 
future new housing growth at the airfield site look to Ashbourne town 

11



centre as providing a strong offer rather than driving to other 
towns/cities which would be a far less sustainable outcome 

Resources  This project has required a significant amount of internal resource to 
get to the stage of bid submission.  If the bid is successful then 
significantly more will be required.  Council emissions are directly 
influenced by the amount of time members of staff have to work on 
an activity and how they undertake this work.  Whilst this project does 
have impacts in this respect these need to be balanced against the 
social, public health and economic impacts of successful delivery.  
The project may require staff to travel to Ashbourne (predominantly 
from Matlock) during delivery.  These journeys will only be 
undertaken when necessary with virtual meetings being the default 
option. 

Land use Public realm – the impact here is minor as the land use will not 
change, however the project will result in a net increase of trees in 
the town centre.   
Whilst there are limited opportunities to improve habitat connectivity 
given the urban nature of the site the new low level planted beds will 
provide some benefits to wildlife and provide a means by which rain 
water can be absorbed. 
Community Hub – the development includes a new community 
garden space.  There will be some clearance here, possible some 
trees – there is one protected tree but otherwise this area is scrub 
like in nature and we would seek to improve with more appropriate 
planting etc.  Overall given much of the area is unused and hard 
standing, it will be a greener space and one that is open to the public 
unlike now 

Procurement Procurement will reflect current policies re social value and we can 
look to support climate change objectives through the procurement 
strategy.  There is influence on partner procurement since the grant 
will only go to partners if they are able to comply with the bid 
procurement strategy  

Transport The original project proposal identified a number of key issues in 
Ashbourne relating to HGVs using the town centre as a through route 
and linked air quality concerns.  It also identified the disconnect 
between the outer residential areas and the town centre, with many 
residents driving into the town rather than walking. 
The project proposal seeks to address some of these issues directly, 
through revitalisation of the town centre and retained footfall.  The 
project should encourage residents to walk into and around the town 
rather than using vehicles to access retail/leisure offerings 
elsewhere.  Though impossible to quantify these benefits in terms of 
emissions reductions it is clear that there could be considerable 
benefit.  The changes will also improvement the environment for 
cyclists. 
Community Hub - the community hub is proposed to be part of a 
DCC mobility hub, with EV charging points for e-bikes and public 
transport information.  Given its location (at the foot of the Tissington 
Trail) it is well placed to serve cycle users (signposting will direct 
people from the current nondescript terminus in the leisure centre car 
park). 
Again, while difficult to quantify in terms of emissions reductions it is 
clear that this could offer considerable benefits. 

12



Waste In the delivery phase the project will create waste.  The amount of 
waste will be minimised where possible through reuse e.g. the 
existing paving and setts will be retained.  
The Hut will be removed from the Millennium Clock Area; this 
building has reached the end of its serviceable life and will need to 
be disposed of.   
The means by which waste will be reduced in the construction phase 
will be specified and managed through contracts. 

Adaptation By 2050 we expect drier warmer summers and more intense periods 
of rainfall.  The project offers some support to our residents to adapt 
to a changing climate through the provision of new street trees 
providing shading to seating areas.  The planters will seek to 
minimise the impact of increased rainfall by providing a natural 
means to absorb rainfall, reducing run off. 

 
 

7.5 Equalities. 
  

 An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has been undertaken and is at Appendix 
2.  Overall the impact of the LUF projects would be positive and would aim to 
help drive greater accessibility. 

 
8 OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
 
 In preparing this report, the relevance of the following factors has also been 

considered: prevention of crime and disorder, equalities, environmental, health, 
human rights, personnel and property. 

 
  

 
CONTACT INFORMATION 
 

Steve Capes, Director of Regeneration and Policy 
 01629 761371, email  steve.capes@derbyshiredales.gov.uk  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

Appendix 1 Levelling Up Fund bid supplement 
Appendix 2 Equality Impact Assessment

13

mailto:steve.capes@derbyshiredales.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



1

July 2022Ashbourne’s Levelling Up Fund SubmissionABC - Ashbourne Better Connected

A B C
Ashbourne 
Better 
Connected

BID SUPPLEMENT

Prepared by Derbyshire Dales District Council and Partners

Approved June 2022

DRAFT V3

Figure 1: Aerial photo of Market Place

15



2

July 2022Ashbourne’s Levelling Up Fund SubmissionABC - Ashbourne Better Connected

Figure 2: Aerial photo of Victoria Square

Contents

1 Introduction

2 Compliance Statement

3  Bid Summary

4  Strategic Fit

5  Economic Case

6  Deliverability

Annexes

A  Project A - Public Realm

B Project B - Community Hub

Appendices

All imagery produced by Lathams if not otherwise stated.

16



3

July 2022Ashbourne’s Levelling Up Fund SubmissionABC - Ashbourne Better Connected

Promoting Authority:

Derbyshire Dales District Council

Supported By:

Michael Rich

Bentley Project Management

Amion

Lathams

Thomas Lister

1: Introduction

Figure 3: Bid projects overview

Project A2
Market Place

Project A3 
Victoria Square

Project A4 
Millennium Square

Project A5
Shawcroft Wayfinding

Project A6 
Shrovetide Walk

Project A1 
Highways

Project B 
Community Hub

17



4

July 2022Ashbourne’s Levelling Up Fund SubmissionABC - Ashbourne Better Connected

2: Compliance 
Statement
DRAFT - TO BE FINALISED  9 Evidence of ability to spend in 2022-2023

 9 Subsidy control compliance

 9 Support from local MP

 9 Formal sign-off by elected members

 9 Statutory undertakers committed

 9 Heads of Terms in place with delivery partner

 9 Match funding in place

 9 Planning status

18



5

July 2022Ashbourne’s Levelling Up Fund SubmissionABC - Ashbourne Better Connected

Like many market towns, Ashbourne is facing the challenge 
of re-inventing itself to ensure that it remains vibrant and 
relevant for the 21st century. The town’s great location and 
heritage assets do not make it immune from the decline in 
footfall arising from the shift to on-line retail accelerated by 
Covid. And its former strength as a market town sat at the 
crossroads of key north-south and east-west trading routes 
now makes for an unwelcoming environment for locals and 
visitors as heavy goods vehicles dominate the town centre 
streets, creating congestion, noise, pollution and safety 
concerns.

3: Bid Summary

Figure 4: Aerial photo of Ashbourne

19



6

July 2022Ashbourne’s Levelling Up Fund SubmissionABC - Ashbourne Better Connected

3: Bid Summary

M1M6

A38

A50

A53

A61

A57A6

A623

M6 Toll

Stoke-on-Trent
Newcastle-under-Lyme

Uttoxeter

Ashbourne
Nottingham

Sheffield

Manchester

Loughborough
Swadlincote

Coalville

Tamworth

Chesterfield
Buxton

The National 
Forest

Peak District 
National Park

Derwent Valley Mills 
World Heritage Site 
and Buffer Zone

Derby

Ashbourne

Figure 5: Site Context

Added to this, the town centre does not provide a 
compelling and rounded offer to bring people in from the 
surrounding area, including hundreds of new homes now 
being developed at the edge of the town. There is a high 
risk of failing to capture the spend from this community as 
people choose to drive further afield to meet their needs.

20



7

July 2022Ashbourne’s Levelling Up Fund SubmissionABC - Ashbourne Better Connected

3: Bid Summary

Figure 6: Project Areas

Mar 03, 2022 09:59

Primary School

Grammar School

Hospital

Leisure Centre

Tissington Trail

Town Centre

Pavilion

New Housing

Bus Station

Community Hub Project

Public Realm Project

CHURCH STREET

ST JOHN STREET

B
U

X
TO

N
 R

O
A

D

UNIO
N S

TR
EET

PARK RO
AD

KING EDWARD STREET

DIG STREET

STATIO
N

 R
O

A
D

C
O

M
P

TO
N

 S
TR

E
E

T

HORSE & JOCKEY YARD

KIN
G S

TR
EET

MARKET 
PLACE

VI
C

TO
R

IA
 

S
Q

U
A

R
E

SHAWCROFT 
CAR PARK

W
ELLING

TO
N YARD

LUF provides a golden opportunity to build on and re-
shape the town’s identity so that it can respond to these 
challenges and become a preferred destination for residents 
and visitors to explore and for businesses to invest. Through 
improving the town’s infrastructure, connecting and creating 
places within and beyond the town centre and providing an 
attractive environment for events, it will drive visits, footfall 
and investment, arresting the current decline and levelling 
up prospects for those who live and work in the town. 
A package of key interventions led by the public sector 
will in turn lever and open up many more private sector 
opportunities down the line.

21



8

July 2022Ashbourne’s Levelling Up Fund SubmissionABC - Ashbourne Better Connected

3: Bid Summary

Figure 7: Victoria Square proposed visual

The first project focuses on ensuring a safe and connected 
town centre, through a series of traffic management, 
pedestrian safety and public realm improvements 
throughout the town centre. Places of interest and heritage 
value within the town are currently disconnected and 
under-utilised, yet with investment can become places that 
can connect and draw people into the town, both in their 
own right and as locations for a modern market offer and 
event spaces. These improvements are complemented by 
measures on key streets that are currently dominated by 
heavy goods traffic. Building on the success of temporary 
measures during the pandemic, a comprehensive scheme 
will transform the experience for pedestrians and create a 
welcoming and accessible environment for visitors as well as 
providing confidence for investors.

22



9

July 2022Ashbourne’s Levelling Up Fund SubmissionABC - Ashbourne Better Connected

3: Bid Summary

Figure 8: Methodist Church Community Hub proposed visual (copyright Allan Joyce Architects)

The second project will also enhance vibrancy and create 
footfall through the creation of a performing arts and 
community venue. The community hub would significantly 
increase and diversify the town centre offer and provide a 
valued space for meetings, flexible working and community 
events. An improved accommodation offer will further 
enhance the capture of spend from the visitor economy 
whilst a co-located mobility hub will provide a range of 
sustainable travel options and connect directly into the 
National Park.

23



10

July 2022Ashbourne’s Levelling Up Fund SubmissionABC - Ashbourne Better Connected

3: Bid Summary

Figure 9: Ashbourne Projects Strategy

Existing

Projects

Connectivity

Sustainability

Reuse

Hospital

Leisure Centre

Tissington Trail

Pavilion

Bus Station

Town Hall

Arrival Car Park

Air Quality 
Management Area

Tissington Trail Car Park

Mobility Hub

Bike Hire

Arrival Routes

East West Connectivity

Potential for Planting

Potential for Solar Panels

Reuse of Vacant Units

CHURCH STREET

ST JOHN STREET

B
U

X
TO

N
 R

O
A

D

UNIO
N S

TR
EET

PARK RO
AD

KING EDWARD STREET

DIG STREET

STATIO
N

 R
O

A
D

C
O

M
P

TO
N

 S
TR

E
E

T

HORSE & JOCKEY YARD

KIN
G S

TR
EET

MARKET 
PLACE

VI
C

TO
R

IA
 

S
Q

U
A

R
E

SHAWCROFT 
CAR PARK

W
ELLING

TO
N YARD

The package will ensure Ashbourne takes its rightful place 
within the regional visitor economy, providing an attractive 
and vibrant environment that draws in residents, visitors and 
businesses and re-establishes its identity as a flourishing 
market town.

Potential for Planting

24



12

July 2022Ashbourne’s Levelling Up Fund SubmissionABC - Ashbourne Better Connected

4: Strategic Fit

Support & Engagement

The bid has been developed through close working with a 
number of local partners who have brought forward project 
ideas, identified opportunities and raised match-funding for 
the bid. These partners include the Ashbourne Town Team, 
Ashbourne Town Council, AshCom, Ashbourne Methodist 
Church and Derbyshire County Council.

25



13

July 2022Ashbourne’s Levelling Up Fund SubmissionABC - Ashbourne Better Connected

4: Strategic Fit

Challenges & Opportunities

• Vacancies, under-occupancy in town centre, decline 
/ risk of further decline, lack of footfall (limited Sunday 
trading)

• Poor / negative sentiment - businesses, visitors, 
residents

• Lack private sector investment / investors holding back 
• Heritage at risk / unmaintained (building in poor 

condition, listed market place has become a car park)
• Traditional / narrow offer, lack of diversity and reasons 

to visit, limited facilities / spaces for events, unmet 
demand for community venues

• Traffic dominated town centre core, HGVs and 
pedestrians (feeling) unsafe

• Poor air quality

Figure 10: Summary of existing challenges

Mar 03, 2022 09:59

Pedestrian Safety Issues

Main Car Park

Disconnected

Heavy Goods Traffic

Poor Surfaces

Heart of Retail Centre

Town Centre Pedestrian
Severance

Principal Arrival Point

Pavilion

Air Quality 
Management Area

Poor Lighting

Vacant Units

CHURCH STREET

ST JOHN STREET

B
U

XTO
N

 R
O

A
D

UNION STREET

PARK RO
AD

KING EDWARD STREET

DIG STREET

STATIO
N

 R
O

A
D

C
O

M
P

TO
N

 S
TR

E
E

T

KIN
G S

TREET

MARKET 
PLACE

VI
C

TO
R

IA
 

S
Q

U
A

R
E

SHAWCROFT 
CAR PARK26



14

July 2022Ashbourne’s Levelling Up Fund SubmissionABC - Ashbourne Better Connected

CHURCH STREET

ST JOHN STREET

B
U

X
TO

N
 R

O
A

D

UNIO
N S

TREET

PARK RO
AD

KING EDWARD STREET

DIG STREET

STATIO
N

 R
O

A
D

C
O

M
P

TO
N

 S
TR

E
E

T
HORSE & JOCKEY YARD

KIN
G

 S
TR

EE
T

MARKET 
PLACE

VI
C

TO
R

IA
 

S
Q

U
A

R
E

SHAWCROFT 
CAR PARK

W
ELLING

TO
N YARD

4: Strategic Fit

Challenges & Opportunities

Figure 11: Total occupancy and vacancy across ground and upper floors

Occupied - 66%

Underused - 7%

Unoccupied - 16%

Unknown - 11%

27



15

July 2022Ashbourne’s Levelling Up Fund SubmissionABC - Ashbourne Better Connected

4: Strategic Fit

Challenges & Opportunities

Figure 12: Location of nearby quarries 

A52

A52

A515

Slinter Concrete

Longcliffe, Ryder Point

Tarmac Ballidon Quarry

Longcliffe Quarries

Bardon Aggregates

Tarmac Dene Quarry

Ben Bennett Jr Ltd

Hanson Aggregates

To Uttoxeter and A50

To Derby

Heavy goods traffic

Heavy goods traffic

Ashbourne

28



16

July 2022Ashbourne’s Levelling Up Fund SubmissionABC - Ashbourne Better Connected

4: Strategic Fit

Challenges & Opportunities

• Large numbers of visitors to Peak District, including 
walkers / cyclists using Tissington Trail and potential 
to draw these into the town for day and overnight visits 
brining spend to local economy

• Significant new housing planned for edge of town 
and potential for a town centre offer that captures 
this spend rather than risk future residents looking 
elsewhere for services and amenities

• Build on Shrovetide as unique feature of the town by 
celebrating this heritage

Figure 13: Summary of opportunities 

Mar 03, 2022 09:59

Pedestrian Safety Improvements

Improved Connectivity

Heavy Goods Traffic Slowed

Improved Surfaces

Heart of Retail Centre

Improved 
Crossings

Principal Arrival Point

Improved Lighting

Reuse of Vacant Units

CHURCH STREET

ST JOHN STREET

B
U

XTO
N

 R
O

A
D

UNION STREET

PARK RO
AD

KING EDWARD STREET

DIG STREET

STATIO
N

 R
O

A
D

C
O

M
P

TO
N

 S
TR

E
E

T

KIN
G S

TREET

MARKET 
PLACE

VI
C

TO
R

IA
 

S
Q

U
A

R
E

SHAWCROFT 
CAR PARK

29



17

July 2022Ashbourne’s Levelling Up Fund SubmissionABC - Ashbourne Better Connected

4: Strategic Fit

Market Failure

A town centre retail ‘health check’ survey was carried 
out in May 2022. The adjacent map shows the extent of 
trader engagement reached within this time. The labelled 
businesses stated their support for a Levelling Up Fund bid 
in Ashbourne.

Quotes from the trader feedback:

“Certain areas look tired and unkept. Vacant shops has 
increased. Traffic is worsening which doesn’t paint a pretty 
picture of the town.”

“The town centre has started to look really uncared for over 
the last few years. Weeds and litter are a huge problem. 
Traffic and HGVs are having a hugely detrimental impact on 
the experience in town and is a massive safety concern, and 
from a health perspective too with regards to the fumes.”

“Customers comment on the shabby appearance of the town 
whether first time visitors or regular visitors.”

“The traffic and large vehicles often causes people to not 
walk past our shop due to speed they come round the corner 
and mount the pavement.”

“The Market Place is an underused area wich would benefit 
from outdoor area / outdoor seating. An area that could be 
enjoyed more by visitors and tourists.”

Figure 14: Map of trader engagement

Mar 03, 2022 09:59

Joules

The Lounge Ashbourne

Silvarious Ltd

Specsavers

Banjo Retail Ltd Young Ideas

Greenman and Jack Rabbits

Lou Lou’s

Cancer Research UK

The Flower Cafe

Henmores

Optimum

Handmade Design
CHURCH STREET

ST JO
HN S

TREET

B
U

X
TO

N
 R

O
A

D

UNION STREET

P
A

R
K

 R
O

A
D

KING EDWARD STREET

DIG STREET

STATIO
N

 R
O

A
D

C
O

M
P

TO
N

 S
TR

E
E

T

MARKET 
PLACE

VI
C

TO
R

IA
 

S
Q

U
A

R
E

SHAWCROFT 
CAR PARK

30



18

July 2022Ashbourne’s Levelling Up Fund SubmissionABC - Ashbourne Better Connected

4: Strategic Fit

Proposed Interventions 

Project A consists of highways and public realm 
improvements across Ashbourne Town Centre. Audit and 
survey work carried out enabled design decisions to be 
made regarding the degree of intervention and the areas 
where this was necessary. The adjacent diagram illustrates 
the proposed areas and the generalised degrees of 
intervention within the project area.

The categories of intervention are as follows:
• Wholesale change (carriageway narrowing, kerb 

realignment, resurfacing pavements with natural stone 
to reflect historic character, resurfacing carriageways 
with tarmac, repair works to the existing natural stone 
paving, new lighting, new wayfinding signage)

• Resurfacing (resurfacing pavements with natural 
stone to reflect historic character,  resurfacing 
carriageways with tarmac, repair works to the existing 
natural stone paving, new lighting, new wayfinding 
signage)

• Repair works (repair works to the existing natural 
stone paving, new lighting, new wayfinding signage)

• Wayfinding (new wayfinding signage, new 
demarcation)

Total project area = 15678m²
Wholesale change = 4567m²
Resurfacing = 5961m²
Repair works = 1212m²
Wayfinding = 3938m²

A1.1

A1.3

A1.5

A1.7A2

A3.1

A3.2
A3.3

A4.3

A5.2

A4.1

A6

A1.2

A1.6

A1.4

A4.2

A5.1

Wholesale change

Resurfacing

Repair works

Wayfinding

Figure 15: Public Realm Proposed Areas / Degrees of Intervention

CHURCH STREET

ST JOHN STREET

B
U

X
TO

N
 R

O
A

D

UNIO
N S

TREET
PARK RO

AD

KING EDWARD STREET

DIG STREET

STATIO
N

 R
O

A
D

C
O

M
P

TO
N

 S
TR

E
E

T
HORSE & 

JOCKEY YARD

KIN
G

 S
TR

EE
T

MARKET 
PLACE

VI
C

TO
R

IA
 

S
Q

U
A

R
E

SHAWCROFT 
CAR PARK

W
ELLING

TO
N YARD

31



21

July 2022Ashbourne’s Levelling Up Fund SubmissionABC - Ashbourne Better Connected

4: Strategic Fit

Theory of Change

Figure 16: Theory of change diagram (tbc)

32



22

July 2022Ashbourne’s Levelling Up Fund SubmissionABC - Ashbourne Better Connected

4: Strategic Fit

Alignment with levelling up missions

1. Living Standards 

The interventions made will reverse the decline in the town 
centre, drive a stronger local economy and directly provide 
employment space for higher quality jobs.

3. Transport Infrastructure 

The mobility hub included within the new Community Hub 
will improve local connectivity and drive a more sustainable 
modal shift, particularly for travel into the National Park.

4. Digital Connectivity 

The public realm improvements will include a modern digitial 
offer and the new Community Hub will be fully enabled to 
provide high quality digital connectivity.

6. Skills 

Facilities at the new Community Hub will include a wide 
variety of spaces for training, complementing the shift to 
higher quality roles to reverse town centre decline.

7. Health 

The public realm and highways improvements will directly 
increase walking and cycling to and within the town centre as 
well as tackling long-standing air-quality issues and improving 
access to the National Park through high quality trails.

8. Wellbeing 

Wellbeing will receive a significant boost through the 
transformed offer for visitors with events in the public spaces 
and at the new Community Hub, a vibrant town centre and 
improved access to wider attractions.

9. Pride in Place 

The measures are directly aimed at reversing the decline in 
pride in place through interventions led by local people and 
businesses to ensure future vibrancy, footfall and quality of 
place.

11. Crime 

Safety and perceptions of safety in the town will be transformed 
through pedestrian-centred improvements, reductions in 
vehicle speed and a new lighting strategy.

12. Local Leadership 

The visitor economy is a key plank of the devolution deal work 
being developed across Derbyshire and Nottinghamshire 
and the Ashbourne package demonstrates how effective 
solutions can be found through close collaboration across all 
tiers of local government.

33



25

July 2022Ashbourne’s Levelling Up Fund SubmissionABC - Ashbourne Better Connected

5: Economic Case

The latest cost summary is included adjacent. Detailed cost 
plans are now in place for both projects. Final costs are 
being refined ahead of bid submission including evidence of 
match funding.

Project Cost (£m) Match funding (£k)

Public realm and highways 9.425 424

Community hub 6.003 1408

Total 15.428 1832

Figure 17: Cost summary

34



26

July 2022Ashbourne’s Levelling Up Fund SubmissionABC - Ashbourne Better Connected

5: Economic Case

Value for Money

The final bid submission will include detailed calculations 
of the value for money of the package including the two 
projects individually.  These calculations compare the 
economic benefits and economic costs to produce a Benefit 
Cost Ratio (BCR). The current BCR for the Ashbourne 
package is comfortably above the requirement set by 
government and indicates that the bid should perform well 
on the Value for Money assessment criteria.  However, there 
are a number of areas where additional benefits could still be 
factored into the BCR.  These are being reviewed prior to bid 
submission, noting that benefits can only be included where 
there is a robust evidence base, otherwise there is a risk of 
undermining the credibility of the BCR.

 

1 
 

Ashbourne Levelling Up Fund bid 

Value for Money Update Note to DDDC, 20/06/22 

The two projects included in the Ashbourne LUF package will generate a range of outputs and 
outcomes, as shown in table 1: 
 

Table 1: Levelling Up Fund Outputs and Outcomes 
 Highways and Public Realm Improvements Community Hub 
Outputs New / improved pedestrian paths 

Resurfaced / improved roads 
New / improved parking spaces 
Public realm created or improved 
New trees planted 
New public WiFi hotspots installed 

Community centre space created or 
improved 
Office space created or improved 
Retail space created or improved 
Cultural space created or improved 
Heritage buildings renovated / restored 
Volunteering opportunities supported 
 

Outcomes Change in pedestrian flow 
Change in number of cyclists 
Mode shift 
Change in traveller experience 
Change in footfall 
Change in perceptions of place 
Change in consumer spending 
Change in business investment 

Change in number of cultural events 
Change in audience numbers for cultural 
events 
Change in footfall 
Change in perceptions of place 

 
Some of these outputs and outcomes can be converted to ‘monetisable economic benefits’, which 
are used by Government departments (including the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and 
Communities, DLUHC) to assess the value for money of public sector investment.  As the Ashbourne 
bid is a package bid, the bid as a whole and each individual project need to demonstrate Value for 
Money.  The ‘monetisable economic benefits’ which apply to the Ashbourne projects are shown in 
table 2: 
 

Table 2: Monetisable economic benefit categories and application to Ashbourne projects 
Benefit Description Highways and 

Public Realm 
Community 

Hub 
Wider land value uplift ‘Place-making’ effects, where investment has 

an impact on property values in the 
surrounding area 

 
 

Amenity benefits Benefits experienced by residents as a result of 
provision of new / improved public space   

Active mode benefits Benefits arising from increased walking / 
cycling (health benefits, reduced congestion, 
improved journey environment etc) 

  

Wellbeing benefits from 
culture 

Wellbeing experienced by those attending 
cultural events / participating in cultural 
activities 

  

Entry to employment Improvement in wellbeing experienced by 
those moving into employment 

 
 

Social value of heritage Benefits generated through investment in 
heritage buildings / environments 

 
 

Health & community 
benefits 

Wellbeing benefits experienced by people 
participating in a range of different activities 
related to health and wellbeing 

 
 

Volunteering The benefits experienced by individuals who 
offer their time as volunteers 

 
 

 

1 
 

Ashbourne Levelling Up Fund bid 

Value for Money Update Note to DDDC, 20/06/22 

The two projects included in the Ashbourne LUF package will generate a range of outputs and 
outcomes, as shown in table 1: 
 

Table 1: Levelling Up Fund Outputs and Outcomes 
 Highways and Public Realm Improvements Community Hub 
Outputs New / improved pedestrian paths 

Resurfaced / improved roads 
New / improved parking spaces 
Public realm created or improved 
New trees planted 
New public WiFi hotspots installed 

Community centre space created or 
improved 
Office space created or improved 
Retail space created or improved 
Cultural space created or improved 
Heritage buildings renovated / restored 
Volunteering opportunities supported 
 

Outcomes Change in pedestrian flow 
Change in number of cyclists 
Mode shift 
Change in traveller experience 
Change in footfall 
Change in perceptions of place 
Change in consumer spending 
Change in business investment 

Change in number of cultural events 
Change in audience numbers for cultural 
events 
Change in footfall 
Change in perceptions of place 

 
Some of these outputs and outcomes can be converted to ‘monetisable economic benefits’, which 
are used by Government departments (including the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and 
Communities, DLUHC) to assess the value for money of public sector investment.  As the Ashbourne 
bid is a package bid, the bid as a whole and each individual project need to demonstrate Value for 
Money.  The ‘monetisable economic benefits’ which apply to the Ashbourne projects are shown in 
table 2: 
 

Table 2: Monetisable economic benefit categories and application to Ashbourne projects 
Benefit Description Highways and 

Public Realm 
Community 

Hub 
Wider land value uplift ‘Place-making’ effects, where investment has 

an impact on property values in the 
surrounding area 

 
 

Amenity benefits Benefits experienced by residents as a result of 
provision of new / improved public space   

Active mode benefits Benefits arising from increased walking / 
cycling (health benefits, reduced congestion, 
improved journey environment etc) 

  

Wellbeing benefits from 
culture 

Wellbeing experienced by those attending 
cultural events / participating in cultural 
activities 

  

Entry to employment Improvement in wellbeing experienced by 
those moving into employment 

 
 

Social value of heritage Benefits generated through investment in 
heritage buildings / environments 

 
 

Health & community 
benefits 

Wellbeing benefits experienced by people 
participating in a range of different activities 
related to health and wellbeing 

 
 

Volunteering The benefits experienced by individuals who 
offer their time as volunteers 

 
 

Figure 18: Value for money (copyright Amion)

35



30

July 2022Ashbourne’s Levelling Up Fund SubmissionABC - Ashbourne Better Connected

6: Deliverability

Summary of Risks

Project Title

Risk ID Area Category Risk  Title Risk. There is a risk that.. Cause. This is because… Consequences. This will effect… Date Raised Probability
Probability 

Score
Impact Impact Score Project Risk Certainty

Mitigation 
Response

Mitigation Measures

TP03 Scheme Wide Third Parties Trader disruptions due to highway scheme
Disruption to trader access due to the highway 
scheme limiting access to the town centre and 

highway corridor  

Lack of coordination and phasing of the town 
centre projects not managed. 

Stakeholders not managed effectively

The cost of the works and 
the duration

Reputational risk to DDDC 

26/05/2022 4 Almost Certain 4 5 Severe 5 20 High Mitigate

Communication strategy to be devised to address the pre contract and post 
contract works. 

Coordination of phasing the works to mitigate disruption. Individual mitigations 
to be developed to key areas. 

PRO03 Scheme Wide Programme Impact of Traffic Management restrictions
There will be localised issues with businesses, 
offices, residents - with noise and disruption 

complaints

Phasing of works to be decided in order to 
reduce the impact to the town centre

The cost and the duration of 
the works increases and 

reputational damage if not 
sensitively 

coordinated/communicated.

26/05/2022 4 Almost Certain 4 5 Severe 5 20 High Mitigate
Early engagement with key stakeholders and develop a scope for the public realm

Agree design of the technical specification at an early stage 

PRO04 Scheme Wide Programme
Phasing of the construction stage to 

minimise disruption. Prolongs programme

There will be localised issues with businesses, 
offices, residents - with noise and disruption 

complaints

Phasing of works to be decided in order to 
reduce the impact to the town centre

The cost and the duration of 
the works increases and 

reputational damage if not 
sensitively 

coordinated/communicated.

26/05/2022 4 Almost Certain 4 5 Severe 5 20 High Mitigate
Appoint a competent contractor that understands the project's aims and 

objectives and is realistic

STA02 Scheme Wide Stakeholder
Poor stakeholder management leads to 

reputational risks for DDDC
Opposition from traders, a lack of 

communication of the scheme and its benefits 
There is a weak communication strategy that 

fails to communicate the projects benefits 

The cost and the duration of 
the works increases and 

reputational damage if not 
sensitively 

coordinated/communicated.

26/05/2022 5 Current 5 5 Severe 5 25 High Mitigate
Ensure buy in from all key partners at the early design stages 

Early engagement with key stakeholders and develop a scope for the public realm

SC01 Scheme Wide Scope No existing utility information/surveys
Surveys and drawings may have missing/missed 

existing or decommissioned services

New services brought into the market are 
unknown. Depth of construction exceeds that 

of what is predicted. 

Utility drawings not accurate, topo surveys to 
confirm locations. 

Kerb alignment lies direct above an 
unchartered service requiring diversion.

Delay to scheme

Injury or death caused by 
striking utility

26/05/2022 4 Almost Certain 4 4  High 4 16 Moderate Mitigate

Engagement with utility providers to undertake site surveys. 

Current design dictates that depth of construction does not extend to the levels 
where existing services may be struck

CON03 Scheme Wide Construction/Implementation
Service diversions/ non performance of 

utility providers
Additional diversion costs and disruptive costs 

to the works
Lack of investigation before start of works

The cost of the works and 
the duration

26/05/2022 3 Likely 3 5 Severe 5 15 Moderate Mitigate
Thorough site investigation and early engagement with utility providers to 

coordinate diversions 

CON05 Scheme Wide Construction/Implementation Availability of materials
The procurement process becomes protracted 

and absorbs critical construction time, 
resulting in delays to the programme  

there are likely to be a number of similar 
projects being delivered locally, regionally and 

nationally in the same time frame as the 
Ashbourne works

The cost of the works and 
the duration

26/05/2022 4 Almost Certain 4 4  High 4 16 Moderate Mitigate Clear project delivery programme with key milestones and resource tracking

CON08 Scheme Wide Construction/Implementation Inflation above allowance made in cost plan 
Inflation increases cost of the scheme and 

overruns the budget

A steady increase in the price of goods and 
services over time affect the feasibility of the 
project and the funding allocation required

The cost of the works and 
the duration 26/05/2022 3 Likely 3 5 Severe 5 15 Moderate Mitigate

Develop realistic and applicable forecast from BCIS and BOE

Ensure robust estimates within cost plan

PRO02 Scheme Wide Programme
Accommodating existing local events/ 
minimising disruption to town centre

Need to manage stakeholder expectations on 
programme line - overpromising leads to lack 

of confidence 

Minimising disruption to the town centre - 
Impact of Christmas trading, town centre 

events etc.
Lack of communication 26/05/2022 4 Almost Certain 4 4  High 4 16 Moderate Mitigate

Early engagement with business and implement a well considered communication 
strategy. Early engagement with highway authorities for diversion routes.  

Ashbourne Town Centre LUF Bid

Summary Project Risk Register

Figure 19: Summary project risk register (copyright Bentley Project Management)

36



31

July 2022Ashbourne’s Levelling Up Fund SubmissionABC - Ashbourne Better Connected

Annexes

Project A - Public Realm and Highways

A1 Highways
A1.1  Church Street - wayfinding 
A1.2 Station Road - wayfinding 
A1.3 Dig Street - wholesale change 
A1.4 Compton Street - wholesale change
A1.5 St John Street west - wholesale change
A1.6 St John Street east - resurfacing
A1.7 Buxton Road - resurfacing 

A2 Market Place - resurfacing

A3 Victoria Square
A3.1 Victoria Square - repair works
A3.2 Victoria Square alleyways - repair works
A3.3 The Gallery - repair works

A4 Millennium Square
A4.1 Millennium Clock - wholesale change
A4.2 Millennium Clock square - repair works
A4.3 Middle Cale - repair works

A5 Shawcroft Wayfinding
A5.1 Horse and Jockey Yard - resurfacing
A5.2  Shawcroft Car Park - wholesale change

A6 Shrovetide Walk - resurfacing

Project B - Community Hub

Figure 20: Overview of projects

Project A2
Market Place

Project A3 
Victoria Square

Project A4 
Millennium Square

Project A5
Shawcroft Wayfinding

Project A6 
Shrovetide Walk

Project A1 
Highways

Project B 
Community Hub

37



32

July 2022Ashbourne’s Levelling Up Fund SubmissionABC - Ashbourne Better Connected

A: Project A 
Public Realm
Project A – Public Realm

Project A1 - Highways

Existing on street parking

New on street parking on Compton Street demarcated with paint only

Pavement resurfacing outside Library and Lloyds Bank on Compton Street

Shrovetide Walk resurfaced and landscaped

Dig Street bridge pavement widened on both sides

Loading bays on footway 
demarcated by gritstone setts

Remove disabled car parking outside 
Boots to free up room for pedestrians

North of Shawcroft car 
park pedestrianised 
zone edged with setts 

Existing cycle stands

Existing bus stand upgraded

Street lights and 
wayfinding signage to 
demarcate Wellington 
Yard as through route

Kerb realignment along 
southern pavement of west 
end of St John Street to 4.1m 
min. width for one way traffic

New crossings at St John Street -
Buxton Road junction (kerb 
alignment remains as existing)

Existing pelican crossing retained but resurfaced 
with gritstone setts to match pavement and edged 
with flush gritstone kerbing

Buxton Road pavement resurfaced with 
limestone flags setts repairing / reusing 
existing setts where possible

Existing on street parking retained

New loading bays located within footway 
demarcated with gritstone setts

Existing limestone flags and setts 
retained and repaired within Middle 
Cale and Millenium Square

Pavement to tie into Market Place proposals

Pavement to tie into Victoria Square proposals
Horse and Jockey Yard resurfaced 
with limestone flags

New informal pedestrian crossings demarcated 
with gritstone setts to match pavement and 
edged with flush gritstone kerbing

Existing pelican crossings retained but resurfaced 
with gritstone setts to match pavement and edged 
with flush gritstone kerbing

Kerb realignment adjacent Victoria Square 
to 4.1m min. width for one way traffic

New cycle lane along southern edge of 
Church Street demarcated with road paint

New cycle lane along western edge of 
Station Road demarcated with road paint -
connecting to the end of the Tissington Trail 

Existing on street parking retained

Existing on street parking retained

Kerb realignment along Dig Street to 4.1m 
min. width for one way traffic to increase 
pavement width for pedestrians

Dig Street pavement resurfaced with 
limestone flags and gritstone setts

DIG STREET

CO
M

PTO
N STREET

CHURCH STREET

STATIO
N RO

AD

ST JOHN STREET

HORSE AND JOCKEY YARD

SHAWCROFT CAR PARK

SHROVETIDE WALK

BUXTON ROAD

MARKET PLACE

VICTORIA SQUARE

MILLENIUM 
CLOCK 

SQUARE

W
ELLINGTON YARD

MIDDLE CALE

THE G
ALLERYRemoval of the existing hut and wall adjacent the Millenium 

Clock, and replace with soft landscaping and stepped 
seating, providing a shared external community space

Loading area on Compton Street demarcated with paint only

Loading / on street disabled parking

New secure cycle parking built 
adjacent existing toilet block

Existing private on street parking

Street lights and wayfinding signage 
to demarcate route to town centre

Total kerb realignment / increased pavement 656m²
Total limestone flags 4101m²
Total gritstone setts 574m²
Total tarmac resurfacing 2264m²
(excluding Market Place and Victoria Square)

Additions:
Shawcroft resurfacing with limestone flags 396m²

New wayfinding signage throughout

New street lighting throughout

New benches throughout

Church Street and Station Road highway 
surface retained (shown light grey)

Dig Street, Compton Street, St John 
Street and Buxton Road to be resurfaced 
with tarmac to DCC spec

Traffic lights retained and repurposed throughout
Buff coloured tarmac to highway throughout 
historic core to improve pedestrian priority

Feature light outside Market Hall / Town Hall

01a Church Street wayfinding 2419m²
01b Station Road wayfinding 1519m²
02a Dig Street wholesale change 1738m²
02b Compton Street wholesale change 734m²
03a St John Street west wholesale change 1276m²
03b St John Street east wayfinding 513m²
04 Buxton Road resurfacing 2406m²
05 Market Place resurfacing 2012m²
06 Victoria Square repair works 613m²
07 Victoria Square / Market Place alleyways repair works 183m²
08 The Gallery repair works 120m²
09 Middle Cale repair works 100m²
12 Horse and Jockey Yard resurfacing 156m²
14 Shawcroft Car Park resurfacing 874m²
15a Millenium Clock wholesale change 94m²
15b Millenium Clock square repair works 196m²
16 Shrovetide Walk resurfacing 819m²

© This drawing and the building works depicted are 
the copyright of the Architect and may not be 
reproduced except with written consent. Figured 
dimensions only are to be taken from this drawing. 
All contractors must visit the site and be 
responsible for taking and checking all dimensions 
relative to their work. Lathams are to be advised of 
any variation between drawings and site conditions.

A0

Project

Status

Derby Nottingham





London

Client

File Name

Drawing Title

Scale Date Drawn Checked

Lathams Job Number Original Size



Project - Originator - Zone - Level - Type - Role - Drawing Number - Status - Revision

Drawing Number Status Revision












As indicated 17.06.22

P01

Ashbourne Levelling Up Fund 2

LB JP

7548

7548–LAT–ZZ–RL–DP–A–2201–S3–P01

S3 - Suitable for Review and Comment

Derbyshire Dales District Council

Proposed Highways Site Plan

2201 S3

Rev Drawn Revision Description Date

P01 LB Revised layout plans 17.06.22

Scale 1:500  @ A0

50m10m 40m30m20m0m
N Notes:

Do not scale from drawing. 
Indicative concept proposals only. No topo survey undertaken.
Work in progress - detailed surface audit tbc.

Figure 21: Project A public realm proposals 

A1.1  Church Street
A1.2 Station Road 
A1.3 Dig Street 
A1.4 Compton Street
A1.5 St John Street west
A1.6 St John Street east
A1.7 Buxton Road 
A2 Market Place
A3.1 Victoria Square
A3.2 Victoria Square alleyways
A3.3 The Gallery
A4.1 Millennium Clock
A4.2 Millennium Clock square
A4.3 Middle Cale
A5.1 Horse and Jockey Yard
A5.2 Shawcroft Car Park
A6 Shrovetide Walk

38



33

July 2022Ashbourne’s Levelling Up Fund SubmissionABC - Ashbourne Better Connected

A: Project A1 
Public Realm
Project A – Public Realm

Project A1 - Highways

Figure 22: Project A1 Dig Street public realm proposals 

39



34

July 2022Ashbourne’s Levelling Up Fund SubmissionABC - Ashbourne Better Connected

A: Project A2 
Public Realm
Project A – Public Realm 

Project A2 - Market Place

Existing historic limestone flags to be retained 
and repaired where necessary (234m²)

Existing historic limestone kerbs to be retained 
and repaired where necessary (71m²)

Existing historic limestone setts to be 
retained and repaired where necessary

All existing mortar between limestone setts to 
be removed and repointed with strengthened 
lime based mortar filled to the top of the surface 
to create accessible surface (1626m²)

Disabled car parking

Loading access in existing location

Pedestrianised Market Place

Existing crossing

Existing on street 
parallel parking

Improved surface drainage

New limestone setts in area 
of existing tarmac (75m²)

Carefully remove paint denoting car 
parking and clean setts throughout

Remove areas of tarmac or cement 
mortar and replace with strengthened 
lime based mortar

Market Cross / Wright Memorial

Spill out space for food 
and drink establishments

Provide service points 
(electricity and water) for 
markets and events (limit 
trenching across listed surface) 

Existing historic limestone flags to be retained 
and repaired where necessary (18m²)

New modern benches - bespoke 
limestone and timber

New uplighters around Market Cross

Spill out space for food 
and drink establishments

Multi-use events space

New native tree planting in tree pits to utilise a 
root management system and pavement 
support system with feature lights surrounding

Spill out space for food 
and drink establishments

Modern cycle stands set into ground

Service covers to be replaced 
with recessed covers with 
paving to match surrounding 
surface treatment

New modern bins

Existing wall mounted lights

Existing wall mounted street light upgraded

Existing street light

Kerb to edge of Market Place to be raised or 
road level lowered to improve pedestrian safety

Remove car park signage and ticket machine and 
amend kerb edge to realign with kerb adjacent

Loss of 45 parking spaces - capacity 
is sufficient across Ashbourne

Removable / detractable bollards of robust 
spec to discourage parking on the square

Detractable bollards of robust 
spec to discourage parking on 
the square

New wayfinding signage

Project




Client File Name

Revision

Drawing Title

Scale @ A2 DateLathams Job Number









Derby

Nottingham




London

Status

Project-Originator-Zone-Level-Type-Role-DrawingNumber-Status-Revision

P041 : 200 17.06.22

Ashbourne Levelling Up Fund 2

7548

Derbyshire Dales District Council

Proposed Market Place Plan

S3 - Suitable for Review and Comment

7548–LAT–05–RL–DP–A–2205–S3–P04

Rev Drawn Revision Description Date

P01 LB First working draft 18.05.22
P02 LB Issue for comment 27.05.22
P03 LB Incorp. Conservation Officer comments 08.06.22
P04 LB Revised layout plans 17.06.22

Scale 1:200  @ A2

20m4m 16m12m8m0m

N Notes:
Do not scale from drawing. 
Indicative concept proposals only. No topo survey undertaken.
Work in progress - detailed surface audit tbc.

Figure 23: Project A2 Market Place public realm proposals 

40



37

July 2022Ashbourne’s Levelling Up Fund SubmissionABC - Ashbourne Better Connected

A: Project A3 
Public Realm
Project A – Public Realm 

Project A3 - Victoria Square

Existing historic limestone flags to be 
retained and repaired where necessary

Existing historic limestone setts to be 
retained and repaired where necessary

Loading access in existing location

Improved surface drainage

Provide service points 
(electricity) for events 

Existing historic limestone flags to be 
retained and repaired where necessary

All existing mortar between limestone setts to 
be removed and repointed with strengthened 
lime based mortar filled to the top of the surface 
to create accessible surface (492m²)

New modern benches - bespoke 
limestone and timber

New uplighters around tree

Spill out space for food 
and drink establishments

Spill out space for food 
and drink establishments

Modern cycle stands set into ground

Existing tree retained and maintained 
/ pruned where necessary

Bollards removed

Wayfinding sign post upgraded

Bespoke design bin storage

Service covers to be replaced with 
recessed covers with paving to match 
surrounding surface treatment

Listed lamppost

New modern bollards reinstated only where 
required to protect the listed lamp post and tree

Vehicular right of access retained for residents

New modern bollard to 
replace existing

Project




Client File Name

Revision

Drawing Title

Scale @ A2 DateLathams Job Number









Derby

Nottingham




London

Status

Project-Originator-Zone-Level-Type-Role-DrawingNumber-Status-Revision

P041 : 200 17.06.22

Ashbourne Levelling Up Fund 2

7548

Derbyshire Dales District Council

Proposed Victoria Square Plan

S3 - Suitable for Review and Comment

7548–LAT–06–RL–DP–A–2206–S3–P04

Rev Drawn Revision Description Date

P01 LB First working draft 18.05.22
P02 LB Issue for comment 27.05.22
P03 LB Incorp. Conservation Officer comments 08.06.22
P04 LB Revised layout plans 17.06.22

Scale 1:200  @ A2

20m4m 16m12m8m0m

N Notes:
Do not scale from drawing. 
Indicative concept proposals only. No topo survey undertaken.
Work in progress - detailed surface audit tbc.

Figure 30: Project A3 Victoria Square public realm proposals 

41



38

July 2022Ashbourne’s Levelling Up Fund SubmissionABC - Ashbourne Better Connected

A: Project A3 
Public Realm
Project A – Public Realm 

Project A3 - Victoria Square

Figure 31: Project A3 Victoria Square proposed visual

42



39

July 2022Ashbourne’s Levelling Up Fund SubmissionABC - Ashbourne Better Connected

A: Project A4
Public Realm
Project A – Public Realm 

Project A4 - Millennium Square

Improved surface drainage

New limestone setts in area 
of existing tarmac (31m²)

New limestone flags to replace 
the tarmac pavement (179m²)

Existing limestone setts to be carefully 
lifted, diamond sawn and relaid to 
create accessible surface (159m²)

New uplighters around Millenium Square

New native tree planting as per Guy Taylor scheme

Modern cycle stands set into ground

Service covers to be replaced with 
recessed covers with paving to match 
surrounding surface treatment

Millenium Clock area redevelopment as per Guy Taylor scheme

Existing limestone setts within The Gallery forming 
central path to be carefully lifted, diamond sawn 
and relaid to create accessible surface (45m²)

Existing limestone setts within Middle Cale to 
be carefully lifted, diamond sawn and relaid to 
create accessible surface (69m²)

New limestone setts in area 
of existing tarmac (22m²)

New gritstone kerbs to match existing

Built in stepped seating and new retaining walls in natural stone

Remove street clutter

Existing basement access

Remove bollards where possible. Replace 
with simple modern cyclindrical bollards if 
they need to be retained for safety.

New modern street furniture

Existing pebbles within the Gallery to 
be removed and replaced with gritstone 
setts to match existing (59m²)

New limestone setts to replace 
area of worn limestone flags (11m²)

Existing steps up to entrances retained

New limestone setts in area of 
existing concrete (3m²)

Existing pebbles within Middle Cale to 
be removed and replaced with gritstone 
setts to match existing (13m²)

Existing escape stair

New timber bin store in 
existing location of bins

New contrasting colour tactiles

All mortar between limestone setts to be repointed 
with strengthened lime based mortar filled to the 
top of the surface to create accessible surface

Levels to be improved as far as practicable

Project




Client File Name

Revision

Drawing Title

Scale @ A2 DateLathams Job Number









Derby

Nottingham




London

Status

Project-Originator-Zone-Level-Type-Role-DrawingNumber-Status-Revision

P031 : 200 17.06.22

Ashbourne Levelling Up Fund 2

7548

Derbyshire Dales District Council

Proposed Millenium Square, Middle Cale, The Gallery

S3 - Suitable for Review and Comment

7548–LAT–15–RL–DP–A–2215–S3–P03

Rev Drawn Revision Description Date

P01 LB Issue for comment 27.05.22
P02 LB Incorp. Conservation Officer comments 08.06.22
P03 LB Revised layout plans 17.06.22

Scale 1:200  @ A2

20m4m 16m12m8m0m

N Notes:
Do not scale from drawing. 
Indicative concept proposals only. No topo survey undertaken.
Work in progress - detailed surface audit tbc.

Figure 32: Project A4 Millennium Square public realm proposals 

43



40

July 2022Ashbourne’s Levelling Up Fund SubmissionABC - Ashbourne Better Connected

A: Project A4 
Public Realm
Project A – Public Realm 

Project A4 - Millennium Square

Figure 33: Project A4 Millennium Square public realm proposals (copyright Guy Taylor Associates)

GUY TAYLOR ASSOCIATES
Elderly Persons Rest Room

Ashbourne
(03)E001

44



41

July 2022Ashbourne’s Levelling Up Fund SubmissionABC - Ashbourne Better Connected

A: Project A5.1
Public Realm
Project A – Public Realm 

Project A5.1 - Horse and Jockey Yard

New limestone flags in area 
of existing tarmac (156m²)

Service covers to be replaced with 
recessed covers with paving to match 
surrounding surface treatment

New modern street furniture

New timber bin store in 
existing location of bins

Spill out space for food 
and drink establishments

Existing limestone setts to be carefully lifted, diamond 
sawn and relaid to create accessible surface (12m²)

Improved surface drainage

Existing wall mounted lights

Young Ideas

Boots

John Fell 
Opticians

Sally Montague

F' Coffee Card 
Factory

Hays 
Travel

Acorn

Sinfoil and Slater

Co-operative

Resurfacing and new wayfinding signage 
at Shawcroft car park to tie into scheme 
at top of Horse and Jockey Yard

Project




Client File Name

Revision

Drawing Title

Scale @ A2 DateLathams Job Number









Derby

Nottingham




London

Status

Project-Originator-Zone-Level-Type-Role-DrawingNumber-Status-Revision

P041 : 200 20.06.22

Ashbourne Levelling Up Fund 2

7548

Derbyshire Dales District Council

Proposed Horse and Jockey Yard

S3 - Suitable for Review and Comment

7548–LAT–12–RL–DP–A–2212–S3–P04

Rev Drawn Revision Description Date

P01 LB Issue for comment 27.05.22
P02 LB Incorp. Conservation Officer comments 08.06.22
P03 LB Revised layout plans 17.06.22
P04 LB Revised layout plans 20.06.22

Scale 1:200  @ A2

20m4m 16m12m8m0m

N Notes:
Do not scale from drawing. 
Indicative concept proposals only. No topo survey undertaken.
Work in progress - detailed surface audit tbc.

Figure 34: Project A5 Horse and Jockey Yard public realm proposals 

45



42

July 2022Ashbourne’s Levelling Up Fund SubmissionABC - Ashbourne Better Connected

Public WCs

Disa
ble

d p
ark

ing

Wellington Yard

Access 
retained

Access 
retained

Access 
retained

Access 
retained

New wayfinding signage in key location

Existing flood / street light replaced with double headed 
light to project onto both the car park and Wellington Yard

New double headed street light to project 
onto both the car park and Wellington Yard

New wayfinding signage 
in key location

Existing bollards

Remove disabled 
parking spaces

Resurfacing with limestone flags up 
to line of new bollards (396m²)

Erection of new storage hut to accommodate 
market stalls / marquee for Market Place (82m²)

Secure cycle store with e-bike charging

New detractable bollards to segregate pedestrianised 
zone, but can still allow loading access when required

New bollards to segregate 
pedestrianised zone

Bus layby and drop off point

One way traffic for buses / loading / access only

New painted road markings if required
New wayfinding signage 
in key location

Relocate 3 no. disabled parking spaces 
here (in place of 5 standard spaces) -
loss of 5 parking spaces in Shawcroft

Existing bus stand upgraded

Existing tarmac surface made good

1m width path of gritstone setts to 
demarcate routes to town centre and 
improve pedestrian connectivity and 
wayfinding (66m²)

New wayfinding signage 
in key location

New street light

New wayfinding signage in key location

Young Ideas
Boots

Sally Montague

Co-operative

Area treated as shared surface
Potential for public art feature









Project




Client File Name

Revision

Drawing Title

Scale @ A3 DateLathams Job Number









Derby

Nottingham




London

Status

Project-Originator-Zone-Level-Type-Role-DrawingNumber-Status-Revision

P021 : 200 17.06.22

Ashbourne Levelling Up Fund 2

7548

Derbyshire Dales District Council

Proposed Shawcroft, Option 2

S3 - Suitable for Review and Comment

7548–LAT–14–RL–DP–A–2230–S3–P02

Rev Drawn Revision Description Date

P01 LB Incorp. Conservation Officer comments 08.06.22
P02 LB Revised layout plans 17.06.22

Scale 1:200  @ A2

20m4m 16m12m8m0m

N Notes:
Do not scale from drawing. 
Indicative concept proposals only. No topo survey undertaken.
Work in progress - detailed surface audit tbc.

A: Project A5.2
Public Realm
Project A – Public Realm 

Project A5.2 - Shawcroft Car Park

Figure 35: Project A6 Shawcroft Car Park public realm proposals 

46



43

July 2022Ashbourne’s Levelling Up Fund SubmissionABC - Ashbourne Better Connected

New wayfinding signage in key location

Shrovetide football art feature within paving - corten steel scultural silhouettes

Proposed paving layout and spec as per Guy Taylor scheme

New steps up to raised garden

New paved pathway and benches 
within sensory garden

Yorkstone flags to outer paving to link into proposed public realm design

Naturalistic, wildflower / wild grass 
planting throughout - seasonal 
species so during February at 
Shrovetide would be dormant

Shrovetide football feature archway at entrance steps 

Shrovetide football feature art 
throughout planted area

New modern benches

New wayfinding signage in key location

Resin bound gravel surface to new feature pathway

Ashbourne LibraryLloyds Bank

Shawcroft Car Park

The Bridge Public House

Northern edge of the public space will be completed 
at a future date once the use and proposals for the 
adjacent vacant unit is known

Project




Client File Name

Revision

Drawing Title

Scale @ A3 DateLathams Job Number









Derby

Nottingham




London

Status

Project-Originator-Zone-Level-Type-Role-DrawingNumber-Status-Revision

P011 : 200 17.06.22

Ashbourne Levelling Up Fund 2

7548

Derbyshire Dales District Council

Proposed Shrovetide Walk

S3 - Suitable for Review and Comment

7548–LAT–16–RL–DP–A–2216–S3–P01

Rev Drawn Revision Description Date

P01 LB Revised layout plans 17.06.22

Scale 1:200  @ A2

20m4m 16m12m8m0m

N Notes:
Do not scale from drawing. 
Indicative concept proposals only. No topo survey undertaken.
Work in progress - detailed surface audit tbc.

A: Project A6
Public Realm
Project A – Public Realm 

Project A6 - Shrovetide Walk

Figure 36: Project A6 Shrovetide Walk public realm proposals 

47



44

July 2022Ashbourne’s Levelling Up Fund SubmissionABC - Ashbourne Better Connected

A: Project A6
Public Realm
Project A – Public Realm 

Project A6 - Shrovetide Walk

Figure 37: Project A6 Shrovetide Walk proposed visuals (copyright Guy Taylor Associates)

14 http://www.guytaylorassociate.co.uk

Figure 23: View of proposed sensory garden

15http://www.guytaylorassoicates.co.uk

Figure 24: View of proposed entrance to sensory garden

48



46

July 2022Ashbourne’s Levelling Up Fund SubmissionABC - Ashbourne Better Connected

B: Project B 
Community Hub
Project B – Community Hub

Figure 38: Project B Community Hub strategic proposals 

Existing

Mobility Hub

Bus

Cycle

Car

Tissington Trail

Bus Station

Arrival Car Park with EV Charging

Tissington Trail Car Park

Mobility Hub

Cycle Hire

E-Cycle Charging and Cycle Hire

CHURCH STREET

ST JOHN STREET

B
U

X
TO

N
 R

O
A

D

UNIO
N S

TR
EET

PARK RO
AD

KING EDWARD STREET

DIG STREET

S
TA

TIO
N

 R
O

A
D

C
O

M
P

TO
N

 S
TR

E
E

T

HORSE & JOCKEY 

KIN
G S

TR
EET

MARKET 
PLACE

VI
C

TO
R

IA
 

S
Q

U
A

R
E

SHAWCROFT 
CAR PARK

W
ELLING

TO
N YARD

87 spaces

191 spaces

125 spaces

Town Centre

21 spaces

50 spaces

E-Cycle Charging and Secure Parking

Community Hub Project

EV Charging

Long Stay

Long Stay

New Cycle Lane

Cycle Parking

49



47

July 2022Ashbourne’s Levelling Up Fund SubmissionABC - Ashbourne Better Connected

B: Project B 
Community Hub
Project B – Community Hub

Lawned area (provides outdoor activity space 
for church / community users groups)

Natural play area (hazel 
tunnel, stepping stones etc.)

New ramped and stepped access to 
community garden from Station Road

Community garden utilised 
as external events space

Remove stepped access 
to create bin store

External cycle store 
and e-bike charging

New entrance 
foyer in extension

Cafe / kiosk at lower ground floor 
onto the community garden

Hostel at lower ground floor renovated

Existing Chapel House converted 
as part of the hostel offer

Cafe used as entrance to 
community mobility hub

Community 
information point

Community hall

Existing shop on Station Road utilised 
as mobility hub information point

Project




Client File Name

Revision

Drawing Title

Scale @ A2 DateLathams Job Number









Derby

Nottingham




London

Status

Project-Originator-Zone-Level-Type-Role-DrawingNumber-Status-Revision

P011 : 200 17.06.22

Ashbourne Levelling Up Fund 2

7548

Derbyshire Dales District Council

Proposed Community Hub Site Plan

S3 - Suitable for Review and Comment

7548–LAT–17–RL–DP–A–2217–S3–P01

Rev Drawn Revision Description Date

P01 LB Revised layout plans 17.06.22

Scale 1:200  @ A2

20m4m 16m12m8m0m

N Notes:
Do not scale from drawing. 
Indicative concept proposals only. No topo survey undertaken.
Work in progress - detailed surface audit tbc.

Figure 39: Project B Community Hub proposed site plan

50



48

July 2022Ashbourne’s Levelling Up Fund SubmissionABC - Ashbourne Better Connected

B: Project B 
Community Hub
Project B – Community Hub

Figure 40: Project B Community Hub proposed lower ground floor plan (copyright Allan Joyce Architects)

DRAWING NUMBER

18 A
REVISION

PROJECT NUMBER

3042
SCALE @ A1

 
DATE

May-22

CLIENT

PROJECT

Ashbourne Methodist Church

DRAWING

Proposed Plans - Lower Ground Floor 
- LUF2 Scheme

This drawing is copyright and remains the property of Allan Joyce Architects Ltd.
Generally do not scale drawings. All dimensions to be confirmed on site. 0 10 mm

Print Size Check

BY

JW

REV. DATE DESCRIPTION BY

Allan Joyce Architects Ltd
Architects, Landscape & Interior Design
16-20 Bath Street, Nottingham NG1 1DF
T 0115 8418418 E design@ajaltd.co.uk

Ashbourne Methodist Church

Preliminary
STATUS

A 10/05/2022Commentary added JW

1:100

up

13

12

11

10

9

121.48

rwp

121.54

rwp&

svp

i.c(0.10Ø)
cl 120.29

rwp

gully

120.29

120.22

120.14

gully

up

120.30

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

steel bar

120.46

up

120.17

us
2.

83

steel

steel

brick arch

brick arch

up

120.17

120.27

gully

pipe over

 g
as

 m
ai

n

i.c(0.15Ø)
cl 120.16

up

120.46 120.21

120.19

120.17

120.18

120.18

brick
setts

brick
setts

 g
as

 m
ai

n

120.18

up

gully

up

ca
no

py

119.75

rwp&
gully

rwp

holly trees

119.68
119.75

119.81
119.89

lime(?)
121.08

lime(?)

119.99

120.00
120.02 rwp& gully120.11

120.24

up

brick wall 2.45ht

120.12
brick wall 2.64ht

2.73ht

120.17

120.19
i.c(0.15Ø)

cl 120.18

concrete

brick
setts

brick
setts

120.22

i.c(0.15Ø)

cl 120.23

i.c(0.15Ø)
cl 120.22

3.08
gully

120.14

120.22

120.19 120.23concrete

concrete

il 119.61

il 119.50

il 119.48

il 119.37

il 119.87

dh
 2

.2
5

us
 3

.9
9

up

1234

upsh2.38
fs1.63

sh2.38
fs1.63

sh2.38
fs1.63

sh0.99
fs1.99

sh2.35
fs1.61

sh2.35
fs1.61

2.38

3.11

sh2.20
fs1.69

sh1.04
fs1.29

sh2.17
fs1.73

N o. 3 4    C H U R C H    S T R E E T

(-4.74)

kitchen

(-4.64)

(-4.698)meeting 3toilets

up

hall

accessible wc / 
special needs 

facilities

kitchenette - drinks
st

or
ag

e

st
or

ag
e

st
or

ag
e

meeting 1

st
or

ag
e

rwp&
gully

upup

up

up

1 2 3 4

up

platform
lift

meeting 2

up

break out
space

reception

diningliving

kitchen

boot 
room

/dryinglau
nd

ry

bed 2
(4-5p)

bed 3
(4-5p)

bed 1
(4-5p)

bed 5
(4-5p)

bed 4
(4-5p)

bed 6
(4-5p)

ens.
ens.

ens.

ens.

ens.

ens.

cy
cle

 s
to

re

cleaner
store

kit
ch

en
et

te

store

bed 1
(2p)

bed 2
(4p)

APT 1

st
or

ag
e

st
or

ag
e

large activity room

st
or

ag
e

st
or

ag
e

small activity  / 
large meeting room

small activity  / 
large meeting room st

or
ag

e
st

or
ag

e

small meeting / 
co-working 

space

large meeting room / 
co-working space

small meeting / 
co-working 

space

E

E

E

E

E

E

hot/cold drink making 
to serve meeting/activity rooms

Multi-use activity hall for larger groups.
Could be used as part of residential accommodation offer for larger groups

Possiblity to  reduce cill heights to create access/connection to community garden (subject to consent)

Residential accommodation

New garden entrance with reception
Family bedrooms sleep 4-5 people (bunks)
All family rooms have private ensuite and additional washbasin in room
Communal kitchen facilities. Option for cafe could provide meals / bed & breakfast also
Communal living and dining space 
Mezzanine could be used as children's play space/den (limited head height)
Boot rooms & drying room for wet walking/cycle gear
Laundry
Secure cycle storage

Cottage converted to 2 family 'apartments' with basic kitchenette facility.
Use in conjunction with other hostel facilities.
Ground floor rooms could be designed as accessible? 
Reduced total number of beds but would provide meet accessible need.

Capacity
6 family rooms @ 4-5 beds = 24-30 beds
Cottage converted to 2 family 'apartments' @ 6 people 
with basic kitchenette facility = 12 beds

Total capacity = 36-42 beds

Proposed single storey extension (subject to consent)
Increases communal areas with much improved outlook 
and connection to new community garden

Create new opening in rear wall & retain high level windows above (subject to consent)

New garden entrance

External sitting / dining area
& wider garden area for use

by hostel users 

Lower Ground Floor Plan

45678910111213

1.95

1.13ht

us 1.66

plant zone
children's 

play area / den
(reduced 

head height)

up

1

2

3

45

up

up

123456

6

7

8

9

10

11 up

admin
office
(-2.39)

(-2.39)

Lower Ground Mezzanine Plan

rwp

water

gully

up

122.29

122.16

122.24

up

123.30

up

i.c
cl 123.18

Telecoms

123.21

123.20

123.20

123.14

rwp

123.15

rwp
gully

up

15

16

14

13

12

11

10

9

1 2 3 4 5

8

rwp 123.26

123.29

rwp

flat
roof

flat
roof

S T A T I O N     R O A D

C
 H

 U
 R

 C
 H

   
 S

 T
 R

 E
 E

 T

servery

kitchen

cafe
(-1.62)

(-1.90)

rwp

rwp

7 8

flue rwp

svp

rwp

rwp

rwp

rwp

rwp

up

1

2

3

4

up

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

Boiler

up

up

1

2

3

45

O
 R

 G
 A

 N

sh 1.47
fs 1.51

rwp

worship

hall

toilets

store kitchen

(0.00)

(0.16)
void

122.96

wc

store

store

lamp-post

124.70

122.79
up

flat
roof

rwp

us2.28

prayer 
room

creche / 
secondary 

worship

possible 
servery

store

void

st
or

ag
e st

or
ag

e

rwprwp

rwp svp

7
8

9

10

11

12

(0.16)

platform
lift (0.00)

(-1.80)

foyer

store

dwc di
sp

lay

vestry

lobby
(-1.62)

external 
cycle store

& 
e-bike charging

welcome / 
information 

point

di
sp

lay

terrace

bed 1
(2p)

bed 2
(4p)

kitchenetteAPT 2

bin 
store

up

13

12

11

10

9

121.48

rwp

121.54

rwp&

svp

i.c(0.10Ø)
cl 120.29

rwp

gully

120.29

120.22

120.14

gully

up

120.30

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

steel bar

120.46

up

120.17

us
2.

83

steel

steel

brick arch

brick arch

up

120.17

120.27

gully

pipe over

 g
as

 m
ai

n

i.c(0.15Ø)
cl 120.16

up

120.46 120.21

120.19

120.17

120.18

120.18

brick
setts

brick
setts

 g
as

 m
ai

n

120.18

up

gully

up

ca
no

py

119.75

rwp&
gully

rwp

holly trees

119.68
119.75

119.81
119.89

lime(?)
121.08

lime(?)

119.99

120.00
120.02 rwp& gully120.11

120.24

up

brick wall 2.45ht

120.12
brick wall 2.64ht

2.73ht

120.17

120.19
i.c(0.15Ø)

cl 120.18

concrete

brick
setts

brick
setts

120.22

i.c(0.15Ø)

cl 120.23

i.c(0.15Ø)
cl 120.22

3.08
gully

120.14

120.22

120.19 120.23concrete

concrete

il 119.61

il 119.50

il 119.48

il 119.37

il 119.87

dh
 2

.2
5

us
 3

.9
9

up

1234

upsh2.38
fs1.63

sh2.38
fs1.63

sh2.38
fs1.63

sh0.99
fs1.99

sh2.35
fs1.61

sh2.35
fs1.61

2.38

3.11

sh2.20
fs1.69

sh1.04
fs1.29

sh2.17
fs1.73

N o. 3 4    C H U R C H    S T R E E T

(-4.74)

kitchen

(-4.64)

(-4.698)meeting 3toilets

up

hall

accessible wc / 
special needs 

facilities

kitchenette - drinks

st
or

ag
e

st
or

ag
e

st
or

ag
e

meeting 1

st
or

ag
e

rwp&
gully

upup

up

up

1 2 3 4

up

platform
lift

meeting 2

up

break out
space

reception

diningliving

kitchen

boot 
room

/dryinglau
nd

ry

bed 2
(4-5p)

bed 3
(4-5p)

bed 1
(4-5p)

bed 5
(4-5p)

bed 4
(4-5p)

bed 6
(4-5p)

ens.
ens.

ens.

ens.

ens.

ens.

cy
cle

 s
to

re

cleaner
store

kit
ch

en
et

te

store

bed 1
(2p)

bed 2
(4p)

APT 1

st
or

ag
e

st
or

ag
e

large activity room

st
or

ag
e

st
or

ag
e

small activity  / 
large meeting room

small activity  / 
large meeting room st

or
ag

e
st

or
ag

e

small meeting / 
co-working 

space

large meeting room / 
co-working space

small meeting / 
co-working 

space

hot/cold drink making 
to serve meeting/activity rooms

Meeting Space - Possible configurations

Cottage - 
Ground Floor Plan

LEGEND

Residential accommodation

Community use

Worship

Community cafe

Cottage - 
First Floor Plan

51



49

July 2022Ashbourne’s Levelling Up Fund SubmissionABC - Ashbourne Better Connected

rwp

water

gully

up

122.29

122.16

122.24

up

123.30

up

i.c
cl 123.18

Telecoms

123.21

123.20

123.20

123.14

rwp

123.15

rwp
gully

up

15

16

14

13

12

11

10

9

1 2 3 4 5

8

rwp 123.26

123.29

rwp

flat
roof

flat
roof

S T A T I O N     R O A D

C
 H

 U
 R

 C
 H

   
 S

 T
 R

 E
 E

 T

servery

kitchen

cafe
(-1.62)

(-1.90)

rwp

rwp

7 8

flue rwp

svp

rwp

rwp

rwp

rwp

rwp

up

1

2

3

4

up

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

Boiler

up

up

1

2

3

45

O
 R

 G
 A

 N

sh 1.47
fs 1.51

rwp

worship

hall

toilets

store kitchen

(0.00)

(0.16)

moveable 
dais

void

122.96

wc

store

store

lamp-post

124.70

122.79
up

flat
roof

rwp

us2.28

prayer 
room

creche / 
secondary 

worship

possible 
servery

store

void

st
or

ag
e st

or
ag

e

rwprwp

rwp svp

7
8

9

10

11

12

(0.16)

platform
lift (0.00)

(-1.80)

foyer

store

dwc di
sp

lay

vestry

lobby
(-1.62)

external 
cycle store

& 
e-bike charging

welcome / 
information 

point

di
sp

lay

terrace

bed 1
(2p)

bed 2
(4p)

kitchenetteAPT 2

bin 
store

E

E

E

E

ramp removed. 
fire escape with 
new escape stair

E

opportunity for external 
cafe seating for additional covers

new door access external seating 
- subject to consent

cafe use or can be closed off to
provide serviced/catered meeting space

pavement works (subject to consent) to resolve ground levels 
would negate need to ramped access and enable frontage of 'link' extension to pull forward

Entrance foyer
- church gatherings
- social & events space
- cafe overflow
- informal meeting
- wifi & cctv provision
- opportunity for 'welcome' desk 
- information point & community display

existing shop 
- information point for mobility hub / trail etc.?
- associated retail?
- tourist information?
- parcel lockers for mobility hub?
- partition rear section to provide storage 
  for food kiosk at garden level
- storage for AMC use

rwp

rwp rwp

lime(?)

lime(?)

sh 0.79
fs 1.08

7

11

12

13

14

15 up up

16

17

18

19

20

21 22

sh 2.17
fs 1.20

8

9

10

11

12 13

14

15

16

17

18

19 20

up

up

up

up

up

rwp

N o. 3 4    C H U R C H    S T R E E T

gallery

Upper Ground Floor Plan

First Floor Plan

DRAWING NUMBER

19 A
REVISION

PROJECT NUMBER

3042
SCALE @ A1

 
DATE

May-22

CLIENT

PROJECT

Ashbourne Methodist Church

DRAWING

Proposed Plans - Upper Ground & 
First Floor - LUF2 Scheme

This drawing is copyright and remains the property of Allan Joyce Architects Ltd.
Generally do not scale drawings. All dimensions to be confirmed on site. 0 10 mm

Print Size Check

BY

JW

REV. DATE DESCRIPTION BY

Allan Joyce Architects Ltd
Architects, Landscape & Interior Design
16-20 Bath Street, Nottingham NG1 1DF
T 0115 8418418 E design@ajaltd.co.uk

Ashbourne Methodist Church

Preliminary
STATUS

A 10/05/2022Commentary added JW

1:100

45678910111213

1.95

1.13ht

us 1.66

plant zone
children's 

play area / den
(reduced 

head height)

up

1

2

3

45

up

up

123456

6

7

8

9

10

11 up

admin
office
(-2.39)

(-2.39)

Office Floor Plan (lower ground floor mezzanine level)

LEGEND

Residential accommodation

Community use

Worship

Community cafe

B: Project B 
Community Hub
Project B – Community Hub

Figure 41: Project B Community Hub proposed lower ground floor plan (copyright Allan Joyce Architects)

rwp

water

gully

up

122.29

122.16

122.24

up

123.30

up

i.c
cl 123.18

Telecoms

123.21

123.20

123.20

123.14

rwp

123.15

rwp
gully

up

15

16

14

13

12

11

10

9

1 2 3 4 5

8

rwp 123.26

123.29

rwp

flat
roof

flat
roof

S T A T I O N     R O A D

C
 H

 U
 R

 C
 H

   
 S

 T
 R

 E
 E

 T

servery

kitchen

cafe
(-1.62)

(-1.90)

rwp

rwp

7 8

flue rwp

svp

rwp

rwp

rwp

rwp

rwp

up

1

2

3

4

up

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

Boiler

up

up

1

2

3

45

O
 R

 G
 A

 N

sh 1.47
fs 1.51

rwp

worship

hall

toilets

store kitchen

(0.00)

(0.16)

moveable 
dais

void

122.96

wc

store

store

lamp-post

124.70

122.79
up

flat
roof

rwp

us2.28

prayer 
room

creche / 
secondary 

worship

possible 
servery

store

void

st
or

ag
e st

or
ag

e

rwprwp

rwp svp

7
8

9

10

11

12

(0.16)

platform
lift (0.00)

(-1.80)

foyer

store

dwc di
sp

lay
vestry

lobby
(-1.62)

external 
cycle store

& 
e-bike charging

welcome / 
information 

point

di
sp

lay

terrace

bed 1
(2p)

bed 2
(4p)

kitchenetteAPT 2

bin 
store

E

E

E

E

ramp removed. 
fire escape with 
new escape stair

E

opportunity for external 
cafe seating for additional covers

new door access external seating 
- subject to consent

cafe use or can be closed off to
provide serviced/catered meeting space

pavement works (subject to consent) to resolve ground levels 
would negate need to ramped access and enable frontage of 'link' extension to pull forward

Entrance foyer
- church gatherings
- social & events space
- cafe overflow
- informal meeting
- wifi & cctv provision
- opportunity for 'welcome' desk 
- information point & community display

existing shop 
- information point for mobility hub / trail etc.?
- associated retail?
- tourist information?
- parcel lockers for mobility hub?
- partition rear section to provide storage 
  for food kiosk at garden level
- storage for AMC use

rwp

rwp rwp

lime(?)

lime(?)

sh 0.79
fs 1.08

7

11

12

13

14

15 up up

16

17

18

19

20

21 22

sh 2.17
fs 1.20

8

9

10

11

12 13

14

15

16

17

18

19 20

up

up

up

up

up

rwp

N o. 3 4    C H U R C H    S T R E E T

gallery

Upper Ground Floor Plan

First Floor Plan

DRAWING NUMBER

19 A
REVISION

PROJECT NUMBER

3042
SCALE @ A1

 
DATE

May-22

CLIENT

PROJECT

Ashbourne Methodist Church

DRAWING

Proposed Plans - Upper Ground & 
First Floor - LUF2 Scheme

This drawing is copyright and remains the property of Allan Joyce Architects Ltd.
Generally do not scale drawings. All dimensions to be confirmed on site. 0 10 mm

Print Size Check

BY

JW

REV. DATE DESCRIPTION BY

Allan Joyce Architects Ltd
Architects, Landscape & Interior Design
16-20 Bath Street, Nottingham NG1 1DF
T 0115 8418418 E design@ajaltd.co.uk

Ashbourne Methodist Church

Preliminary
STATUS

A 10/05/2022Commentary added JW

1:100

45678910111213

1.95

1.13ht

us 1.66

plant zone
children's 

play area / den
(reduced 

head height)

up

1

2

3

45

up

up

123456

6

7

8

9

10

11 up

admin
office
(-2.39)

(-2.39)

Office Floor Plan (lower ground floor mezzanine level)

LEGEND

Residential accommodation

Community use

Worship

Community cafe

52



50

July 2022Ashbourne’s Levelling Up Fund SubmissionABC - Ashbourne Better Connected

B: Project B 
Community Hub
Project B – Community Hub

Figure 42: Project B Community Hub proposed visual from Station Road (copyright Allan Joyce Architects)

53



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

Derbyshire Dales District Council 
Equality Impact Assessment 

 
Please refer to the guidance whilst completing this form.  
Contact Elizabeth Wilson [elizabeth.wilson@derbyshiredales.gov.uk, or 01269 761240] for support. 
 
1. Outline 

 
Information required Detail  

a. Title of policy, practice, service or function being 
assessed 

Derbyshire Dales Levelling Up Fund Round Two Bid 
Ashbourne Town Centre 
 

b. Links to Service and/or Corporate Plan Ref/s CP20/PR21 Prioritising regenerating housing and employment sites: 
prepare a Levelling Up Fund bid and submit to the Government by the 
Round 2 deadline of 6th July 2022 
 

c. Name and Role of Officers conducting 
assessment 

Elizabeth Wilson [Corporate Policy Officer] 

d. Date of assessment 15 June 2022 
e. Reason for assessment 

 
To support bid for funding by identifying potential equality and diversity 
related advantages and disadvantages that may result if the project were 
to be enacted. To mitigate any negative impacts prior to the bid being 
submitted  

f. What is the purpose of this policy, practice, 
service or function? (specify aims and 
objectives) 
 

Prioritising regenerating housing and employment sites. 
 
Improving satisfaction with DDDC services; particularly satisfaction with 
the place residents live 
 
Reversing decline, creating vibrancy and reasons to visit within a safe and 
well-connected environment, and restoring pride in place 

55



2 

Information required Detail  
g. Are there any other organisations involved in its 

implementation? 
DCC, Ashbourne Town Council, Ashbourne Town Team, Ashbourne 
Methodist Church, ASHCOM 
  

h. Likely customer groups to be impacted Residents, business owners, visitors 
 

i. Other stakeholders likely to be impacted  
 

DCC, Ashbourne Town Council, Ashbourne Town Team, Ashbourne 
Methodist Church, ASHCOM 

Which District Council departments are affected 
by the policy, practice, service or function?   

All to some extent at various stages of the project 

Do any of the objectives directly support or 
hinder another Council activity? 

Unsure until detailed project plans are agreed 

 
 
2. Assessing Relevance to the General Equality Duty          
  

The General Equality Duty has three aims which require the District Council to have due regard 
to the need to: 

Tick those which 
are relevant    

1. Eliminate unlawful discrimination (both direct or indirect), harassment and victimisation 
 

 

2. Advance equality of opportunity between all persons by  
  removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by protected groups;  
  taking steps to meet the needs of people from protected groups where these are different from the 

needs of other people  
  encouraging people from protected groups to participate in public life or other activities where 

participation is disproportionately low 

  

3. Foster good relations between different groups 
 

  

 
 
3. What existing information / data do you have / monitor about different diverse groups in 
relation to this policy, practice, service or function?  

56



3 

For example: previous EIA’s, reports, 
consultation, surveys, demographic 
data etc. 
 
Information / Data  

Data source and 
date 

Information relevant to proposed 
policy/service/function 

  

57



4 

Ashbourne Equalities Profile  
https://observatory.derbyshire.gov.uk/
wp-
content/uploads/reports/profiles/area_
profiles/electoral_divisions/Derbyshire
_Dales/D01_Ashbourne_Area_Profile.
pdf 

Derbyshire 
Observatory; taken 
from Census 2011 -
national survey of all 
households 
 

In the ward of Ashbourne, there are approx 5000 
households, 13% lone pensioners, 30% have dependent 
children and 5% are lone parent households. 
 
The percentage of people in Ashbourne aged 16 to 44 is 
30.4% which is slightly less than in England which is 
37.6%.  
 
The percentage of people aged 45 to 85+ is at 52.9% 
which is higher than in England where it is 43.3% 
 
4.65% of people identify as an ethnic minority in 
Ashbourne; in England the percentage is 20.2% 
 
The median cost of a house is £265,000, which is 
significantly higher than the England figure of £221K 
 
There are almost double the number of road traffic 
casualties compared to the rest of Derbyshire 
 
17.5% of residents find day to day activities are limited. 
25.9% of households have one person in household with 
a long-term health problem or disability compared with 
17.6% in England 
[https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/h
ealthandsocialcare/disability/articles/disabilityinenglandan
dwales/2013-01-30] 
 
10.4% of residents provide unpaid care 
 
33.2% of households are rented, compared to 35% in 
England 
[https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uplo
ads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1000052/EHS_1
9-20_PRS_report.pdf] 

58

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/healthandsocialcare/disability/articles/disabilityinenglandandwales/2013-01-30
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/healthandsocialcare/disability/articles/disabilityinenglandandwales/2013-01-30
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/healthandsocialcare/disability/articles/disabilityinenglandandwales/2013-01-30
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1000052/EHS_19-20_PRS_report.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1000052/EHS_19-20_PRS_report.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1000052/EHS_19-20_PRS_report.pdf


5 

 
 
 
 
 

Ashbourne town Profile 
https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lo
calarea?compare=E34003707 

NOMIS Official 
Labour Market  
Statistics  
Census 2011- 
national survey of all 
households 
 

Couples registered as single sex civil partnerships 
number 16 or 0.2% 
 
98.5% of residents are white 

Population figures – estimated for 
2020 by the ONS 
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulati
onandcommunity/populationandmigrati
on/populationestimates/datasets/popul
ationestimatesforukenglandandwaless
cotlandandnorthernireland 
 

Office of National 
Statistics 

e.g. The UK median age is 40.4, in the Derbyshire Dales it 
is 51.5 
 
e.g. Total population of Derbyshire Dales is 72,422; made 
up of 36,777 women and 35,645 men 

 

Completed Consultation/Engagement

There has been engagement on most aspects of the proposals. The public realm/highways improvements have been tested 
with local businesses and we have engaged with the Ashbourne Town Team, AshCom, the Town Council and DCC throughout 
the process. 

The same groups have been engaged in the plans for the church and the Methodist church who own the building that is 
proposed to become the community hub, have themselves undertaken considerable engagement about the proposals with a 
variety of groups/users etc.

Some themes raised need further consideration as proposals develop, such as, the use of the event spaces in the community 
hub and the market square and the need to host events that appeal to the widest range of people possible across the 
community, including groups with protected characteristics.

59

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationestimates/datasets/populationestimatesforukenglandandwalesscotlandandnorthernireland
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationestimates/datasets/populationestimatesforukenglandandwalesscotlandandnorthernireland
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationestimates/datasets/populationestimatesforukenglandandwalesscotlandandnorthernireland
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationestimates/datasets/populationestimatesforukenglandandwalesscotlandandnorthernireland
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationestimates/datasets/populationestimatesforukenglandandwalesscotlandandnorthernireland


6 

  
 
4. Consultation and engagement 
Who are the stakeholders? How will you gather their views? By when? 
 

Who will you consult 
with? 

How? When? Results 

For specific proposals such 
as events further 
consultation will take place 
with the following 
stakeholders as required 
  Residents 
  Businesses 
  Visitors 
  Groups that use 

facilities 
  Groups and individuals 

with protected 
characteristics  

 

tbc – likely to include online 
surveys, paper surveys, 
forums, meetings with 
stakeholder groups 

tbc  

   
If no consultation is necessary, please explain why. 

 
  

OR - No consultation or gathering of stakeholder views are necessary because…

60



7 

Recommendations for changes identified as a result of consultation 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
5. Based on the evidence above, does the policy, practice, service or function have a positive or negative 
impact on any protected group(s)? 

 

Protected 
groups 

 
Positive effects 

 

 
Negative effects 

 
 

 
Potential Improvement 

Actions 
 
 

Age  
 
 
 

Improved pedestrian access and areas 
will allow older people and young people 
with children to feel safer when walking 
through the town centre  
 
Changes to the cobbled pavement 
surfaces will make them more accessible 
for anyone with mobility problems and 
help prevent slips, trips and falls [young 

Tactile pavements for partially 
sighted people can cause problems 
for wheelchair users and some 
people with mobility issues 

Research into accessible 
pavement surfaces 

61



8 

Protected 
groups 

 
Positive effects 

 

 
Negative effects 

 
 

 
Potential Improvement 

Actions 
 
 

children, people with buggies, older 
people] 
 
Improved lighting will help people to feel 
safe in the dark – particularly people 
socialising in the evenings 
 
The development of the community hub is 
designed to improve the accessibility of 
the current building to a wider range of 
people and in avoiding level changes 
wherever possible it will drastically 
improve the situation for people with 
mobility constraints 
 
The community hub will include a wider 
range of spaces and look to host events 
that cater to a wider audience including 
events for different ages that will improve 
the overall offer in the town 
 
The improved accommodation at the 
community hub will be far more fit for 
purpose for groups of all ages and 
compliant with safeguarding requirements 
 
The development of the market area is 
designed to improve the accessibility of 
the current area to a wider range of 
people and in avoiding level changes 

62



9 

Protected 
groups 

 
Positive effects 

 

 
Negative effects 

 
 

 
Potential Improvement 

Actions 
 
 

wherever possible it will drastically 
improve the situation for people with 
mobility constraints (note – disabled 
parking spaces to be retained in market 
place) 
 

Disability or 
long term ill 
heath 
Physical 
disabilities, 
sensory 
impairments, 
limiting long-
term illnesses, 
learning 
disabilities or 
mental health 
issues 

Improved pedestrian areas and access 
will allow people with disabilities to 
access shops, services and community 
resources 
  
The development of the market area is 
designed to improve the accessibility of 
the current area and in avoiding level 
changes wherever possible it will 
drastically improve the situation for 
people with mobility constraints (note – 
disabled parking spaces to be retained in 
market place) 
 
Changes to the cobbled pavement 
surfaces will make them more accessible 
for anyone with mobility problems and 
help prevent slips, trips and falls 
 
Better pedestrian experiences will result, 
reducing the impact of vehicles and 
improving safety 
 

Tactile pavements for partially 
sighted people can cause problems 
for wheelchair users and some 
people with mobility issues 

Research into accessible 
pavement surfaces 

63



10 

Protected 
groups 

 
Positive effects 

 

 
Negative effects 

 
 

 
Potential Improvement 

Actions 
 
 

Improved lighting will particularly aid 
people with sight impairments 
 
Improved lighting will help people to feel 
safe in the dark 
 
A modern community centre will be 
accessible for people with disabilities 
 
 

Race / ethnic 
groups 

Improved lighting will help people to feel 
safe in the dark 
 
 
The community hub will include a wider 
range of spaces and look to host events 
that cater to a wider audience including 
events more likely to appeal to a wider 
range of race/ethnic groups by improving 
the overall offer in the town 
 
The improved accommodation at the 
community hub will be far more fit for 
purpose for groups of all abilities and 
compliant with safeguarding and 
accessibility requirements 
 
 

  

64



11 

Protected 
groups 

 
Positive effects 

 

 
Negative effects 

 
 

 
Potential Improvement 

Actions 
 
 

Women or men  
 

Improved lighting will help people to feel 
safe in the dark – particularly women who 
are socialising or working in the evenings 
 
The community hub will include a wider 
range of spaces and look to host events 
that cater to a wider audience including 
events appealing to both men and women 
and improving the overall offer in the town 
 

  

Sexual 
orientation  
 

Improved lighting will help people to feel 
safe in the dark 
 
The community hub will include a wider 
range of spaces and look to host events 
that cater to a wider audience including 
events for groups with different sexual 
orientations and improving the overall 
offer in the town 
 

  

Religion or 
belief 
(including non-
belief) 

The community hub will include a wider 
range of spaces and look to host events 
that cater to a wider audience including 
events for groups with different beliefs 
and improving the overall offer in the town 
 

Having a community hub/event space 
within a church may put off particular 
protected groups.  

The funding agreement with 
the church will be clear that 
the offer and spaces need to 
be open and available to all 
and promoted as such. 

65



12 

Protected 
groups 

 
Positive effects 

 

 
Negative effects 

 
 

 
Potential Improvement 

Actions 
 
 

Transgender 
(including 
people planning 
to or going 
through gender 
reassignment) 

Improved lighting will help people to feel 
safe in the dark 

  

Pregnancy and 
maternity 
(including 
maternity and 
paternity leave  

The development of the market area is 
designed to improve the accessibility of 
the current area and in avoiding level 
changes wherever possible it will 
drastically improve the situation for 
people with mobility constraints, buggies, 
babies etc 
 
Changes to the cobbled pavement 
surfaces will make them more accessible 
for anyone with mobility problems and 
help prevent slips, trips and falls 
 
Better pedestrian experiences will result, 
reducing the impact of vehicles and 
improving safety 
 
Improved lighting will help people to feel 
safe in the dark 
 
Improved pedestrian access and 
pavements will help this group to feel 
safer when walking through the town 
centre  

  

66



13 

Protected 
groups 

 
Positive effects 

 

 
Negative effects 

 
 

 
Potential Improvement 

Actions 
 
 

 
The improved accommodation at the 
community hub will be far more fit for 
purpose for groups and individuals with 
pregnancy and maternity related needs 
and will be compliant with safeguarding 
and accessibility requirements 
 

Marital status 
(including civil 
partnership & 
same sex 
marriage)  

   

 
5a. Are there any local priority groups / factors which should be considered? 
  

67



14 

 
Other factors 

 

 
Positive effects 

 
Negative effects 

 
Improvement actions 

Rural areas 
 

   

Poverty / deprivation 
 

Improved community facilities will 
provide leisure activities for 
residents 
 
Flexible work areas with high 
quality digital provision in the 
community hub, may support 
people to set up or run their own 
businesses 
 

Pricing of events held at the 
community hub could 
potentially produce negative 
effects, though this is less likely 
to be the case than in a fully 
commercial venue 

 

Visitors/tourists Improved community facilities at 
the hub will encourage visitors to 
enjoy safe, attractive outdoor 
space 
 
Charging facilities for e-bikes and 
scooters, plus connections to the 
Tissington Trail may encourage 
visitors who may spend money in 
local businesses 
 
The changes to the public realm 
in particular market square will 
allow for events to be held 
throughout the year that will 
appeal to visitors and attract 
more spend in the town 

  

    
 
 

68



15 

  
6. Commissioned / outsourced services 
 
Is your policy, practice, service or function partly or wholly provided 
by any external organisation / agency? 
 

Yes /  
 

If yes, please list any contractual or other arrangements which aim to 
ensure that the provider promotes equality and diversity (e.g. 
monitoring data) 
 

The funding agreement that will be put in place with the 
Methodist Church if LUF is awarded will include 
requirements for compliance with equality and diversity 
duties and monitoring 

  
  

 
7. Summary  
Use this space to summarise key data and its implications, the key issues to be addressed, potential actions to address them and 
any other points relevant to the Policy/service. 

 
8. Improvement Plan 
 

69



16 

Key issues identified Actions 
Impacts when the programme of works is taking place: the works 
will inevitably cause disturbance and access issues and mitigation 
measures will need to be put in place to enable access to premises  

Consult stakeholder reps / access groups on the 
implementation plan in order to minimise impacts.   A 
clear Comms strategy would also assist 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 
PLEASE FORWARD THE COMPLETED FORM TO THE POLICY MANAGER / POLICY OFFICER (Consultation & Equalities) 

 
Signed   ________________________________ ________________________(Completing Officer)   

 

70



NOT CONFIDENTIAL – For public release     
 
Community & Environment Committee  
 
29 June 2022 
 
Report of the Director of Resources 
 
 
PARISH COUNCIL REIMBURSABLE EXPENDITURE SCHEME 
 
PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

This report considers an application from Calver Parish Council for funding in respect of the 
cost of the maintenance of a newly acquired village green. 

 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
That the application from Calver Parish Council for funding maintenance of the village green 
be refused. 
 
WARDS AFFECTED  
 
Calver 
 
STRATEGIC LINK  
 
The village green belongs to Calver Parish Council but would contribute towards Keeping 
the Derbyshire Dales Green and improving the health and wellbeing of people who use it. 
 
 
1 REPORT 

1.1 The Council has a parish council reimbursable expenditure scheme. The intention of 
the scheme is to support parish councils financially where they maintain burial grounds 
and playing fields.  

1.2 On 5th June 2008, the Community and Environment Committee considered a report of 
the former Community and Environment Overview Committee following a Scrutiny Key 
Challenge of Parish Council Reimbursable Expenditure. The Committee resolved:  

1.3 “That the Council does not automatically assume the maintenance costs for any new 
facilities, i.e. playing fields, with any such request to be considered by the appropriate 
Policy Committee of the Council”.  

1.4 An application has been received from Calver Parish Council for the Council to 
provided additional funding of approximately £1,300 (75% of £1700) in 2022/23 in 
respect of the additional cost of maintaining their new village green. A copy of the 
request is including at Appendix 1. The element for which the Parish Council has 
applied for funding is 75% of the cost of grass cutting contracts.  

 

71

Agenda Item 7



1.5 In considering the application, the following points should be borne in mind: 

  In order to contribute towards meeting the corporate savings target, budgets for 
reimbursable expenditure have been cash limited to the amounts set in 2012/13. It 
could be considered unfair if a new scheme is approved for one particular Parish 
Council. Furthermore, this could create a precedent for other parish councils to 
submit requests for increased financial support. Officers have been unable to 
identify any new schemes being added since the review in 2008. 

  The Council has approved a Corporate Savings Target to identify efficiency savings 
and/or additional income of £250,000 a year by 2023/24” Therefore, any increase 
in the budget for reimbursable expenditure would have to be met by a reduction in 
the Council’s budgets elsewhere. 

  Unlike the district council, Calver Parish Council is not subject to Council Tax 
capping, and could meet any increased costs through an increase in their precept 
request. For 2022/23 the Parish Council levied a precept of £8,500, equivalent to a 
Band D Council Tax of £23.39 per household. This compares to the average Parish 
Council Band D Council Tax of £61.97 in 2022/23. If the precept had been 
increased by £1,300, the resulting Band D Council Tax would have been £26.97. 

1.8 Taking into account the above issues, it is proposed that the application should be 
refused. 

 
 
2 RISK ASSESSMENT  

Legal 
 
2.1 This report is focused on a Parish Council’s request for additional funds to cover 

expenditure in the current year. The report in itself does not raise any specific Legal 
issues as the decision is for the District Council to make as opposed to an obligation. 
Therefore the Legal risk at this time has been assessed as Low.  

Financial 
 
2.2 There is no budgetary provision for further commitments under the parish council 

reimbursable expenditure scheme. While the cost of approving this request might be 
low, there is a risk that there would be an expectation of support for future years and 
that it would set a precedent and other parish councils would come forward with similar 
requests or with requests for increased support. Therefore the financial risk is 
assessed as medium. 

3 OTHER CONSIDERATIONS  

3.1 In preparing this report, the relevance of the following factors has also been 
considered: prevention of crime and disorder, equalities, environmental, health, human 
rights, personnel and property. 

3.2 Climate Change: This report refers to an application to provide financial support 
towards the maintenance of a village green. The village green is owned by Calver 
Parish Council and it is understood by officers that the Parish Council will maintain it 
whatever decision this Committee makes regarding funding.  There is no proposed 
change to the use of the land at this time. Therefore, no climate change impact 
assessment is required. 

72



 
4 CONTACT INFORMATION 

4.1 Karen Henriksen - Director of Resources 
Telephone: 01629 761284 
Email: karen.henriksen@derbyshiredales.gov.uk 

5 BACKGROUND PAPERS 

5.1 None 

 
6 ATTACHMENTS 

6.1  Appendix 1 – Letter from Calver Parish Council dated 17 March 2022

73

mailto:karen.henriksen@derbyshiredales.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

CALVER PARISH COUNCIL 
 

20 Daleview Road 
Sheffield 

S8 0EJ 
17th March, 2022 

 
 
Karen Henriksen 
Director of Resources 
Derbyshire Dales District Council 
 
Request for financial support – re-imbursable expenditure re grass cutting of the 
Village Green, public open space, Sough Lane, Calver 
 
Dear Karen, 
 
On behalf of Calver Parish Council, I would like to make an application to ask if DDDC 
can support the Parish in re-imbursing in part, the costs borne by the Parish Council on 
behalf of local parishioners in the grass cutting of a new asset that the PC have recently 
acquired from the former Calver Cricket Club and now designated as a village green for 
open community use and enjoyment. The PC had previously been in negotiation with the 
Cricket Club regarding future use of the facility given that no cricket had been played on 
the field for over 4 years and the continued viability and sustainability of the Club came 
into question and it was deemed that there was little prospect of this becoming viable 
due to sufficient interest and persons wanting to play or willing to commit their time in 
support of a number of programmed cricket fixtures either as part of a league or on an 
ad-hoc friendly basis. 
 
Therefore, after discussions with the Club, In September 2021 the Parish Council took 
over responsibility for the former cricket ground, now the village green, which sits near 
the centre of the village. It is a prominent and visible site from many locations. In 
planning terms it is a protected open space for community use and it lies within the 
Calver Conservation Area. Our vision, is to use it as a public open space and we are due 
to consult further with local parishioners at our Annual Parish meeting on 21/4/22 for 
their views as to what particular uses it might be put, in this regard. Naturally, given the 
pandemic over the last couple of years, this will be the first opportunity to have an open 
public meeting to gauge local opinion. Notwithstanding, whatever particular uses are to 
be made of the field, it has and will continue to need ongoing grounds maintenance. 
 
We are a small Parish Council with a limited disposable budget. For the year ending 
2020/21 our income was under £8000 and after meeting running and other similar costs 
only about 50% was available for discretionary projects. The estimated expenditure on 
the village green for 2022/23 is £2300. The grass cutting contract costs are some £1700 
pa and the remaining costs are in respect of utility costs (electricity and water supplies) 
and other associated or miscellaneous running/upkeep costs. 
 
It can be seen from the above that the new village green, welcome though it is, will be a 
large call on our finances. The Parish Council has determined to introduce the costs of 
running the green in a phased manner. If the full first year costs were applied to the 

75



 

 

Council Tax precept it would have introduced a significant 27.66% increase in tax for our 
taxpayers. 
 
At next months’ Annual Parish Meeting we intend to discuss with the residents how they 
would like to see the village green managed and ask them if there are any features they 
would welcome. Some obvious suggestions are things like a children's play area which 
we do not have at this time. Clearly the aspirations of our residents will need to be 
managed according to our ability to pay and raise funds. From this it can be seen that 
any resource which DDDC can supply would help to allow us to maintain the green and 
potentially free up money to meet local residents ideas. 
 
Given the recent acquisition we have not developed any income although this will be 
looked at alongside residents wishes. Clearly as a village green there will be limited 
scope to see a significant income stream which is what the former cricket club found 
when they sought to maximise income. 
 
In setting the precept for 2022/23 financial year and factoring in our estimated annual 
cost of running the village green, our precept has increased by 8.39% over the current 
2021/22 level. Given the well publicised current impacts now facing our taxpayers with 
the increase in standard of living costs not least arising from increased fuel/energy 
prices, it would be greatly appreciated if DDDC were able to offer support to the Parish 
and it’s residents in the form of re-imbursable expenditure relating to the grass cutting 
element and in this respect I would like to ask if DDDC are able to assist in meeting 75% 
of our annual £1700 costs in 2022/23. 
 
I understand that this matter would require consideration at the Governance & 
Resources Committee and I would be grateful if this matter could be considered at your 
next meeting which I understand is due to take place on 21/4/22. 
 
I look forward to hearing from you. 
 
 
 
Yours Sincerely 

 
Simon Oldham 
Clerk to Calver Parish Council 
Tel 07791 453361 
clerk@calverparishcouncil.org.uk 

 
 

76



NOT CONFIDENTIAL – For public release   
 
Community and Environment Committee 
 
29 June 2022 
 
 
Report of the Director of Regulatory Services 
 
 
 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT AREA, ASHBOURNE – UPDATING 
REPORT 
 
PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
This report updates Members on the actions taken following the declaration of an Air Quality 
Management Area in Ashbourne at the meeting of this Committee on 7 April 2021. 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
That members note the actions taken in progressing the action plan process 
 
 
WARDS AFFECTED   
 
Ashbourne North 
 
 
STRATEGIC LINK  
 
Protecting and improving air quality supports the District Council’s priority of Place and 
directly addresses the Corporate Plan indicator CP20/PL14 to carry out a Detailed 
Assessment and progress to an Air Quality Management Area and Action Plan as 
necessary. 

 
1 BACKGROUND  

1.1 At the meeting of the Community and Environment Committee held on 7 April 2021 it 
was resolved to declare an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) in respect of the 
following area: 

  Buxton Road from the junction with Windmill Lane and North Avenue, to the junction 
with St John’s Street; 

  St John’s Street from number 22 St John’s Street to the junction with Cokayne 
Avenue and Park Road. 

 
1.2 The AQMA was declared in relation to exceedances of the annual average air quality 

objective for nitrogen dioxide (40µgm-3) and the area was defined to include all areas 
in which levels of nitrogen dioxide came within 10% of the air quality objective (ie that 

77

Agenda Item 8



were likely to exceed 36µgm-3).  The AQMA is formally known as the Derbyshire Dales 
District Council Air Quality Management Area (No 2; NO2) Order 2021 and came into 
effect on 5 May 2021.  

1.3 At the 7 April 2021 meeting it was agreed that quarterly updating reports would be 
submitted to further meetings of this Committee.  A first update was provided at the 
meeting of this Committee on 23 June 2021, a second update was given on 17 
November 2021 and a third on 23 February 2022.  This report is the fourth update. 

 
2 REPORT 

2.1 Following the meeting on 7 April 2021, Officers contacted Derbyshire County Council’s 
Transport team and began the process of progressing an action plan.  This 
conversation had been ongoing for some time, as liaison had been necessary to obtain 
the traffic figures necessary to undertake the Detailed Assessment.  However, it was 
agreed that it would now be appropriate to hold an Action Plan inception meeting.  This 
meeting was held on 13 May 2021 and it was agreed that the team would follow the 
model used for the creation of other AQMA Action Plans in Derbyshire, that is that a 
long list of all possible options would be devised and that this would then be evaluated 
to determine which of these options might be suitable for Ashbourne.  It was also 
agreed that representatives from Ashbourne Town Council and Ashbourne Town 
Team would be involved in the Action Plan process.  A series of meetings would be 
needed in order to produce the final approved Action Plan and to monitor the actions 
agreed as part of the Plan. 

2.2 In order to manage the Action Plan process, officers have set up a simple action log 
to record progress.  This action log is a live document and will become of more use 
as the Action Plan process develops.  However, it is reproduced below in order to 
provide Committee with an update at this stage: 

Number Date Action 
001 05/05/21 AQMA formally declared 
002 12/05/21 AQMA accepted by DEFRA 
003 TBC AQMA uploaded to DEFRA website – problems with DEFRA 

website have prevented immediate uploading 
004 13/05/21 Inception meeting with DCC Highways – agreed to creation of 

long list for action plan, involvement of interested parties and 
allocated staff resources 

005 19/05/21 Publication of DDDC webpage – 
https://www.derbyshiredales.gov.uk/environment-and-
waste/pollution-noise/air-pollution/air-quality-management-
areas/buxton-road-ashbourne  

006 25/05/21 Contact made with Ashbourne Town Council and Ashbourne 
Town Team 

007 25/05/21 Date agreed for creating long list. 
008 18/06/21 Proposed date for action plan working group to discuss long 

list 
009 18/06/21 Meeting with DCC, ATC and ATT.  Discussion of general 

principles.  Agreement of approach to be taken – long list to 
short list to implementation 

010 06/07/21 Email from Buxton Road residents requesting involvement 
011 26/07/21 Email from Buxton Road residents with suggestions for actions 

78

https://www.derbyshiredales.gov.uk/environment-and-waste/pollution-noise/air-pollution/air-quality-management-areas/buxton-road-ashbourne
https://www.derbyshiredales.gov.uk/environment-and-waste/pollution-noise/air-pollution/air-quality-management-areas/buxton-road-ashbourne
https://www.derbyshiredales.gov.uk/environment-and-waste/pollution-noise/air-pollution/air-quality-management-areas/buxton-road-ashbourne


012 27/07/21 Email to DCC requesting update and forwarding Buxton Road 
residents information for DCC to assess 

013 27/07/21 Response from DCC – long list not yet ready, general ideas 
mooted.  September suggested for working group meeting 

014 29/07/21 Contact from Chris Webster ATT update on current status as 
requested  

015 02/09/21 Email to DCC to look to set up a further stakeholder meeting 
016 02/09/21 Reply from DCC suggesting an internal catch up meeting after 

9th September when they were having an internal workshop re: 
Ashbourne.  

017 02/09/21 Reply sent offering dates. 
018 02/09/21 Interagency meeting agreed for 16/09/21 
019 16/09/21 Meeting undertaken with DCC and proposed wider meeting for 

end of October –Jim Seymour availability after 18th. 
020 22/09/21 Email to DCC for dates for stakeholder meeting 
021 22/09/21 Email to stakeholders with proposed dates for next meeting 
022 20/10/21 Email to DCC to request the long and short lists to send out 

prior to the next Stakeholder meeting  - reply back advising it 
is not yet available, due to not having sign off by senior 
managers 

023 27/10/21 Chasing email to DCC officers for the lists.   Still not available 
as it is going through the governance process at DCC.  Jim to 
update us. 

024 28/10/21 Email to DCC as no update yet asked them to update Amanda 
in my absence 

025 01/11/21 AG Email DCC for an update response is that the lists can’t yet 
be released as governance process not complete.  Meeting to 
go ahead for update. 

026 02/11/21 Proposed Stakeholder meeting 
027 12/11/21 Date confirmed for possible next meeting with the proviso of 

the lists being released by DCC. Due to availability 15th 
December earliest date available. 

028 17/11/21 Email from TJB to DCC requesting update. 
029 17/11/21 Response from DCC – expect to complete assessment of long 

list today or tomorrow 
030 17/11/21 Second update to C&E Committee 
031 24/11/21 Letter from Cllr Purdy to Cllr Lewis et al 
032 08/12/21 Email DCC for update 
033 14/12/21 Email DCC again for update 
034 14/12/21 Update from DCC – lists are not yet available but the 

scheduling of the meetings for the relevant permissions are 
being arranged.  Work on the Capital Programme is still being 
worked on to contribute towards the Action Plan 

035 11/01/22 Update from DCC: all work complete and scheduling of a 
meeting is with the members’ secretariat.  Considerable work 
been undertaken up to now and just need the sign off to release 
the information. 

036 13/01/22 Update from DCC: Councillor meeting is booked for 25 January 
2022. 

037 27/01/22 Email to DCC for an update 

79



038 28/01/22 Email from DCC advising that proposals will need to be 
considered by Cabinet meeting on 22/02/22 

039 10/02/22 Email to DCC for update 
040 10/02/22 Confirmation from DCC that course of action as per point 38 is 

being followed 
041 22/02/22 Email from DCC with a link to the committee report and the 

long and short lists 
042 23/02/22 Email from DCC giving details of an internal planning meeting 

for 4th March to look at the commissioning of works included in 
the short list of works. 

043 23/02/22 Email of link to the DCC report to the Stakeholders’ Group 
044 08/03/22 Emails with DCC to select a date for next meeting internal 

meeting pushed back a week due to diary availability.  21st April 
a possibility. 

045 08/03/22 21st not suitable for all group new date to be found 
046 13/04/22 New request for availability from group for next stakeholder 

meeting 
047  14/04/22 9th best day booked for meeting   
048 14/04/22 Shared 2021 data with DCC now bias factor released 
049 04/05/22 Further resident traffic alleviation scheme for review shared 

with DCC 
050 04/05/22 Meeting put back 1 hour to allow all members to attend 
051 04/05/22 ATC provided recent material regarding local interest in the 

AQMA 
052 05/05/22 Request for Zoom meeting to be arranged 
053 06/05/22 Papers and invite sent out 
054 09/05/22 Meeting undertaken dates and priorities discussed Karen to 

write draft and circulate 
056 19/05/22 Draft AQAP to DoRS and EHM for first comment 
057 30/05/22 Draft of AQAP to group 
058 30/05/22 Complaint that not all information in the draft.  Karen agreed 

more information was planned to be included, however, was 
waiting for further details to be provided before adding 
additional information agreed at the meeting 

059 31/05/22 Shared AQAP draft with DCC public health team 
060 25/05/22 Meet with Council Tree Officer on Buxton Road 
061 ongoing Liaise with Tree Officer and solicitor to secure agreement for 

tree management on Buxton Hill 
 

2.3 As can be seen from the table above, the shortlist of proposed actions has been 
received from Derbyshire County Council and has been shared with the working 
group.  This shortlist has been discussed with the group and worked up into an early 
draft of the Air Quality Action Plan, which has also been shared with the group.  The 
intention is to work through the options available to produce a final draft of the Action 
Plan, which will then be presented to a future meeting of this Committee, before 
submission to DEFRA. 

2.4 In the meantime, preparatory works have been commenced to consider how one of 
the recommendations, relating to the tree canopy towards the top of the area covered 
by the Air Quality Management Area, can be thinned in order to enable better 
dispersion and dilution of nitrogen dioxide. 

80



3 RISK ASSESSMENT 

3.1 Legal 

This report is updating members on the progress for officers on implementing the Air 
Quality Management Plan as per its statutory obligations, therefore the legal risk is low. 
 

3.2 Financial 

The costs of monitoring air quality can be accommodated from the existing budgets. 
The financial risk is, therefore, assessed as low.  
 

4 OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 

4.1 In preparing this report, the relevance of the following factors has also been 
considered: prevention of crime and disorder, equalities, environmental, climate 
change, health, human rights, personnel and property. 

4.2 The approved Climate Change Impact Assessment Tool has been completed for this 
report and is reproduced below.  This identifies that the AQMA action plan has the 
potential to decrease emissions from vehicles travelling through the area.  However, 
since the action is aimed at reducing emissions in one particular area it may not result 
in an overall reduction in vehicle use, so much as a shift to other routes.  However, it 
is suggested that progressing and publicising this work could result in raising 
awareness around the impacts of travel on emissions that impact on climate change. 

 

 
 
 

 
Adaptation

(↓↑ 0)  Buildings
(↓↑ 0) 

 Business
(↓↑ 0) 

 Energy
(↓↑ 0) 

 Influence
(+7)  Internal 

Resources
(↓↑ 0) 

 Land use
(↓↑ 0) 

 Other
(↓↑ 0) 

 
Procureme

nt
(↓↑ 0) 

 Transport
(+5) 

 Waste
(↓↑ 0) 

+12.0

DDDC has committed to being a carbon neutral 
organisation by 2030 (8 years and 2 months away).

Generated 
29/10/21 v1

81



5 CONTACT INFORMATION 

5.1 Tim Braund, Director of Regulatory Services, Tel: 01629 761118, Email: 
tim.braund@derbyshiredales.gov.uk 

Amanda Goodwill, Environmental Health Manager, Tel: 01629 761316, Email: 
amanda.goodwill@derbyshiredales.gov.uk 
 
Karen Carpenter, Environmental Health Officer, Tel: 01629 761227, Email: 
karen.carpenter@derbyshiredales.gov.uk 
 
6 BACKGROUND PAPER 

6.1 None 

 
7 ATTACHMENTS 

7.1 None

82

mailto:tim.braund@derbyshiredales.gov.uk
mailto:amanda.goodwill@derbyshiredales.gov.uk
mailto:karen.carpenter@derbyshiredales.gov.uk


NOT CONFIDENTIAL – For public release                  
 
COMMUNITY AND ENVIRONMENT 
29 June 2022 
 
Report of the Director of Community & Environmental Services 
 
 
ANNUAL LEISURE REPORT 2021/22 
 
PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
This is an annual report to provide an update on the performance of the four leisure centres 
within the district, from 1 April 2021 – 30 March 2022. These leisure centres are now operated 
by Freedom Leisure.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
1. To note the annual report provided by Freedom Leisure for 2021/22  

  
2. To approve a deviation from the leisure contract to allow Freedom Leisure to retain and 

carry forward the £28,910 surplus from 2021/22 to 2022/23. 
 

 
WARDS AFFECTED 
 
All 
 
STRATEGIC LINK 
 
The provision of leisure facilities links with climate change to improving Place and to improve 
the health and wellbeing of residents linking with all the Council’s corporate priorities. 
 
 
 
1 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The District Council has four leisure centres.  These are sited in Ashbourne, Bakewell, 

Matlock and Wirksworth. 
 

1.2   Following a review and options appraisal, the management and development of 
the service was outsourced to Freedom Leisure, a not profit organisation, in August 
2018. 

 
1.3 The Community Development Manager manages the contract with Freedom Leisure 

to ensure the service is operating in line with the contract. 
 
1.4 Freedom Leisure provides the District Council with a report every quarter that captures 

headline data and key outcomes during that period. These reports then form an annual 
report at the end of the financial year, see Appendix 1 for 2021/22 annual report.  

 
1.5 The concept behind this report is to demonstrate the work that has taken place 

throughout the 2021/22 financial year and the performance of the four leisure centres.  
83

Agenda Item 9



 
1.6 This is the second annual report to be presented to committee since the start of the 

contract as during 2020/21 the centres were closed for the majority of the year due to 
covid-19. Therefore no report was completed for 2020/21.  

 
 

2 REPORT 
 

Contract Management  
 

2.1 The Community Development Manager, who is responsible for managing the leisure 
contract, completes site visits across the four leisure centres every quarter and meets 
with each Leisure Centre Manager on a monthly basis. These site checks include a 
full site inspection, including: 
 
- Cleanliness 
- Health & Safety Management 
- Customer Service  
- Incident Reporting 
- Environment & Energy Management  

 
2.2 The above 5 areas are reviewed and reported in a monthly report, as detailed in the 

service specification, to identify any high risk areas that could ultimately result in 
penalty charges.  
 

2.3 During 2021/22 financial year there were no penalty charges awarded to Freedom 
Leisure as performance was in line with the metrics set out in the contract and 
specification. 

 
2.4 Quarterly meetings take place with Freedom Leisure and Derbyshire Dales District 

Council officers. These meetings give an opportunity for Freedom Leisure to present 
a report on the performance over the previous quarter and to address any issues from 
both Derbyshire Dales District Council and Freedom Leisure. Items on the agenda can 
include capital spend and leisure centre improvement works, the Active Communities 
Plan, consultation results and areas of concern.  
 

2.5 The Community Development Manager works very closely with Freedom Leisure’s 
Area Manager. This means there are very few issues within the contract as these get 
addressed through regular communication.  

 
 
Participation  

 
2.6 Freedom Leisure track participation through both total usage and active usage. Over 

the past year the total usage of our 4 leisure centres is 755,466 and active usage is 
585,795. With a full year of opening since covid-19 the contract has got back to the 
participation that it reached in the year 2018/19. Post covid activity levels have 
continued to rise month on month and participation is over 90% post covid levels.   
 

2.7 Due to Covid-19 there are some areas that have taken longer to recover than others. 
There has been a significant uplift in aquatics. Participation for casual swimming is just 
300 visits off 2019/20 full year performance. There is a huge rise in the Learn to Swim 

84



programme with 2,372 children learning to swim, this is the highest number of children 
on the programme to date.  

 
2.8 This data is very encouraging as it was very unclear what impact the pandemic would 

have on the leisure industry and how quickly it would bounce back.  
 
 

Active Communities  
 

2.9 Freedom Leisure appointed a new Active Communities Manager in September 2020 
who has worked closely with Derbyshire Dales District Council’s Physical Activity & 
Sport Development Team from the beginning, as well as with sports clubs who use 
the leisure facilities and with many local stakeholders.  
 

2.10 Active Communities has worked in partnership with Derbyshire Dales District Council 
to host free swimming sessions during the school holidays for children from the Hurst 
Farm Holidays project. They have also supported the bid and operation of Holiday, 
Activities and Food programmes which ran during the Christmas holidays 2021/2022. 

 
 

2.11 Active Communities have attended and supported the District Council’s 3km events 
across the district to promote the centres to a wider audience and targeted specific 
groups to sign up to a free day pass at the centres.  
 

2.12 A total of £1,757 has been secured by the Active Communities Manager between 
September 2021 and March 2022. The successful funding is for 2 projects; Ashbourne 
Pool Hoist and Autism project at Arc Leisure Matlock. 

 
 

2.13 A successful project working alongside Matlock Water Polo Club supporting them with 
the recruitment of more junior members, through taster sessions being held at 
Bakewell Pool during Christmas holidays and February Half Term. 
 

2.14 30+ staff have been trained in Dementia Awareness with Alzheimer’s UK and 15 Staff 
trained in Autism Awareness with Autism East Midlands.  
 

Capital Works 
 

2.15 As part of the contract Derbyshire Dales District Council have pledged to invest just 
over £1.1M in capital refurbishment works across the 4 leisure centres.  
 

2.16 Derbyshire Dales District Council funded capital refurbishment works include: 
 

- Gladstone system upgrade to allow the launch of Go Learn, which is an in centre 
online portal that supports teachers in monitoring progress in swimming lessons. 
Go Learn also allows parents to log in at home to look at their child’s progression. 
 

- 4 pool covers have been installed across the 3 pool sites to support the decrease 
in energy consumption. This supports the pools to not lose heat overnight or when 
not in use.  

 
- Upgraded bouldering matts at Wirksworth Climbing Wall 

   

85



 
2.17 Future development works may include: 

 
- Upgrade to the Ashbourne dryside vanity areas  

 
- Upgrade Ashbourne minor hall with modernisation and redecoration  

 
- Access control gates to the entrance at Arc. 
 
Environment & Energy Management 

 
2.18 Full responsibility for the procurement, management, cost and use of gas, water 

electricity and pool chemicals transferred to Freedom Leisure, who are required to 
operate the facilities in an environmentally sensitive and sustainable manner, to 
reduce energy consumption, minimise chemical usage, and recycle appropriate non-
hazardous wastes. 
 

2.19 The 2021/22 figures shown within the annual report (appendix 1) compare against 
2019/20 as due to lockdown this year shows a more true comparison.  

 
2.20 Collectively the contract has reduced both gas and electric usage across the 4 sites 

reducing electric consumption by circa 19% and reducing gas consumption by 7%.  
 

2.21 There will be continued savings in the coming year due to the decarbonisation project 
at Ashbourne which is due to be finished late summer 2022.  

 
2.22 The project was fully funded by a successful bid to the Public Sector Decarbonisation 

Scheme in partnership with Freedom Leisure.  The total grant amount was £734,000 
and has funded decarbonisation of the heating through replacement of the existing life 
expired boilers with air source heat pumps, the installation of 180 solar PV panels, 
battery storage to maximise use of energy generated on site, a building energy 
management system and new metering. 

 
2.23 The project recently won a Commended Award at the East Midlands Energy Efficiency 

Awards for Large Project of the Year. 
 
 Operational Income & Expenditure 
 
2.24 Over the 2021/22 financial year Freedom Leisure have generated £2,634,977 of 

income in comparison to the bid where income levels were expected to be £2,996,867 
(excluding the management fee). The pandemic has had an impact on the income 
levels due to still operating at around 90% pre covid levels overall. Expenditure for this 
period is £2,953,837. The management fee for 2021/22 totalled £347,770, therefore 
the total income for the financial year is £2,982,747, resulting in a surplus of £28,910 
on the contract.  
 

2.25 Whilst the end of year surplus is £28,910 this was achieved by the help of grants: 
 

- £72,000 NNDR restart grants 
- £43,000 JRS grants  
- £74,000 NLRF grant carried forward from 2020/21. 

 
 

86



2.26 Due to the rise in the cost of living and the rise in utility bills nationally it is 
recommended that the £28,910 surplus remains with Freedom Leisure rather than a 
50/50 surplus share as this will ease pressure throughout 2022/23 when utility bills 
increase significantly. 
 
 
Officer’s comments  
 

2.27 Derbyshire Dales District Council will continue to work even closer with Freedom 
Leisure over this next financial year to monitor any further impact the pandemic has on 
the performance of the leisure centres. There has been clear communication throughout 
the pandemic ad since the reopening of the sites over the past year and Derbyshire 
Dales District Council have supported Freedom Leisure throughout.  

 
 
3 RISK ASSESSMENT 
  
3.1 Legal 
 
 This Report is focused on the annual report providing an update on the performance 

of the four leisure centres within the district, from 1 April 2021 – 30 March 2022. This 
is in compliance with the contract. Therefore at this time the legal risk in connection 
with this report has been assessed as low.  

 
3.2 Financial  

 
The report indicates that the contract has resulted in a surplus of £28,910 for 2021/22.  
 
Under the terms of the Council’s contract with Freedom Leisure, this surplus would 
usually be shared 50:50 between the Council and Freedom Leisure. However, 
Freedom has requested that the surplus be carried forward into 2022/23 to offset any 
potential deficit for that year.   
 
Such a deficit is likely for several reasons. The two main reasons are the increased 
costs for fuel and energy costs to heat, light and run the leisure centres and the risk of 
a reduction in customer income. Customer participation, and therefore income levels, 
could fall as a result of customers reducing their use of leisure facilities as they deal 
with the impact of the rising cost of living, including fuel costs. 
 
Officers are of the view that it makes sense to carry forward the surplus from 2021/22, 
to offset any deficit in 2022/23, rather than to distribute it now. The Council’s share of 
the 2021/22 surplus is £14,455, so the financial risk is assessed as low. 

 
 
4 OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
 

In preparing this report, the relevance of the following factors has also been 
considered: prevention of crime and disorder, equalities, environmental, climate 
change, health, human rights, personnel and property.  
 

5  CONTACT INFORMATION 
 

87



  Ash Watts, Director of Community & Environmental Services 
  Telephone: 01629 761367; 
  Email: ashley.watts@derbyshiredales.gov.uk 
 
  Rebecca Cummins, Community Development Manager.   
  Telephone: 01629 761385  
  Email: rebecca.cummins@derbyshiredales.gov.uk 
 
6 BACKGROUND PAPERS 

None  
 

7 ATTACHMENTS 
 
 Appendix 1 – Annual Freedom Leisure Report  
  

88

mailto:ashley.watts@derbyshiredales.gov.uk
mailto:rebecca.cummins@derbyshiredales.gov.uk


Derbyshire Dales District Council

leisure operating contract annual report

April 2021 - March 2022

89



introduction

the council’s corporate plan 2020-24freedomleisure commenced a 10 year contract to manage 

Derbyshire Dales council’s leisure facilities on 

I August 2018, these facilities include:

Arc Leisure Matlock

Ashbourne Leisure Centre

Wirksworth Leisure Centre

Bakewell Swimming Pool and Gym

“Due to COVID-19, the 2020/21 financial year has been an extremely 

challenging year for the sport and leisure sector as a whole, but Freedom 

Leisure, with significant support from Derbyshire Dales District Council, has 

continued to provide the best service possible during these unprecedented 

times. The team in Derbyshire has worked tirelessly to welcome everyone 

back to their local leisure centre; motivated by the goal of providing our 

local communities with the best possible opportunities for exercise, activity 

and the chance to socialise safely.”

Ivan Horsfall-Turner | Managing Director - Freedom Leisure

2

90



an introduction to the uk’s second largest genuine charitable leisure trust:

3

freedomleisure ethos

• Provide affordable and accessible health, leisure and sport facilities 

for everyone, therefore having a positive impact on the local 

communities in which we operate and serve – we aim to inspire 

people to be more active more often

• Reinvest surplus into quality services

• Exceed our partners’ desired outcomes for local communities

• Enhance our reputation and status

• Grow and develop as a company in a sustainable way

• Develop our people

• Renew existing contracts and win new ones

2021/22 has been an another challenging year for the sport

and leisure sector as a whole, but Freedom Leisure has

worked closely with their local authority partners to provide

the best service possible coming out of the pandemic.

Nationally Freedom Leisure was selected as the preferred

operator of 2 new leisure contracts, increasing their

portfolio to 109 leisure centres, 25 individual clients and over

3,500 employees.

freedomleisure

corporate vision

109
Leisure Centres, including 2 theatres, on behalf of 

25 individual clients across England and Wales.

focus
Committed to providing and developing inclusive 

leisure facilities for everyone. Delivering a 

service to exceed our customers’ expectations 

not for profit
freedomleisure is a not-for-profit leisure trust 

which manages leisure and cultural facilities on 

behalf of partners across the UK to realise our 

vision of  “improving lives through leisure”

91



4

finance summary:

arc
Ashbourn

e
bakewell Wirksworth

active 

communities
Total

Income £1,160,986 £745,104 £385,571 £342,359 £957 £2,634,977

Expenditure
£1,234,519 £800,300 £471,848 £431,313 £15,827 £2,953,837

management fee & 

repayments £3,182 £130,021 £62,272 £152,295 £0 £347,770

net surplus / 

(deficit)
£-70,351 £74,795 £-24,005 £63,341 £-14,860 £28,910

finance summary:

92



2021 -2CCu022:  our year in 

numbers 

585,795
total active 

participation

With a full year of opening the contract has got back to the 

participation that it reached in the year 18 – 19. Post COVID 

activity levels have continued to raise month on month. 

755,466
total centre 

participation

5

“I just wanted to say a big thank you 
to - and to hopefully get some 
recognition for - James, the first aider 
who looked after my daughters 
friend, Violet Williams today. Violet 
was very upset, very agitated and in a 
lot of pain due to a minor accident 
with her finger. James was really 
patient and kind and calmed her 
down incredibly well. He really does 
deserve a big thank you. Not very 
many people could have managed 
what he did. Thanks James!” 

Arc Leisure Matlock User

A HUGE thank you for Rachel and the rest of the team at 
the leisure centre, soft play and cafe for helping make our 
5-year old son’s birthday so special after the last minute 
cancellation where his party was supposed to have been 
yesterday. Rachel went above and beyond to make sure 
we were accommodated in the soft play area and we can’t 
thank her enough for everything she did. Also, a special 
thank you to the staff in the cafe - particularly the young 
lad that brought the food into us. Very courteous, 
professional and efficient. Although the were some friends 
that couldn’t get there because of the floods, Gabriel could 
not have had a better birthday party and loved every single 
minute of it! Again, thank you Rachel and the team. 
Best wishes David and Eve Booker, Matlock

Derbyshire Dales year in numbers - visitors

93



2021 -2CCu022:  our year in 

numbers 

Freedom Leisure has recently carried out the NPS 

satisfaction surveys. 

Derbyshire Dales scored the 2nd highest result within the 

company and grew from previous NPS results. 

6

“Water is warm. Friendly and helpful staff Long 

opening hours with a fair mix of open sessions 

and lane swimming Cleanliness Excellent local 

facility for private lessons, school and children’s 

lessons as well as public swimming..”

Bakewell Swimming Pool - Customer

Derbyshire Dales Customer Satisfaction 

“Wonderful, friendly, hard working staff who keep 

the pool immaculately clean, always ready to give 

information , a smile and exchange a few words. 

As an 81 year old needing the pool to keep fit as 

walking is much reduced, I really appreciate this 

facility..”

Bakewell Swimming Pool - Customer

“I've been a Member since arc opened with seb

coe .its my second home .and i would 

recommend to anyone .Great for your mental 

well being. I am 72 and there 5 times a week 

when I can . Love the different classes, just do it!! 

Thank-you” Arc Leisure - Customer

“I like the atmosphere across the building, which 

is friendly, and the high level of cleanliness that 

provides Covid safety on al the fitness 

equipment. I think the centre exhibits an inclusive 

nature and although I am an older person am still 

able to participate in your offer to keep fit.” 

Ashbourne - Customer

The staff are friendly, accommodating and 

knowledgeable. Well done! There is scope for 

many more classes to be held such as kettle bells, 

spinning, swiss ball, pilates, circuits to name a few. 

This would allow the centre to compete more 

with local gyms and with more instructors offer 

a range of classes hopefully in the evenings

Wirksworth - Customer

94



With the Centre's now being re-open for a full financial year 

there has been a significant uplift in Aquatic performance.  

Participation for casual swimming sits just 3,00 visits off 19 –

20 full year performance. There is a significant rise in the LTS 

programme, with continued scope for further growth.

156,133
Casual swim visits

2,372
On LTS programme 

March 22

4,988
Family swim tickets

1,009
50 plus swim 

sessions

7

“My 2 year old goes to the soft play here regularly he loves it, 

gets excited to go every time and the staff there are brilliant. He 

has recently been diagnosed lactose intolerant and the cafe have 

added some lactose free options for him and they are looking at 

expanded so there will be more to choose from” 
Arc Leisure Customer

“Family swim, lots of fun with floats. Staff really friendly, lots of 

warm showers and plenty of changing rooms.”

“This place was refurbed a few years back and is a lovely little 

town leisure centre, with helpful staff”

Ashbourne Leisure Centre Swimmers

Derbyshire Dales year in numbers - aquatics

95



Centres Re-opened from the 12th of April, with minimal 

restriction in place. This has seen almost a full year of 

trading for the Centres and a continued push to pre 

pandemic levels

8

Derbyshire Dales year in numbers - programming

5213
Members 

March 22

44,533
Group 

exercise visits

10,065
Climbing 

wall visits

9,960
Racquet 

sports visits

12,144
Soft play 

visits

71,728
Casual gym 

visits

46,137
Grass and 

ATP visits

“The classes are brilliant! Elle who does legs bums and tums is 

amazing! I’m also enjoying Zumba with Dave!” 

Arc Leisure Customer – Facebook

“The arc has the best fitness classes in the area, all the instructors 

are amazing and not only keep you motivated but are good fun too.  

Definitely recommend highly”

“Being a member of Arc leisure centre is more than just using the 

gym, its being part of a community.  A community that supports each 

other and cheers each other along to their goals. From the amazing 

instructors who are always on hand to help to the other members 

who Ive developed some great gym friendships with. I could imagine 

training anywhere else! Ive reached so many goals since returning 

from lockdown and I dont think I would be thriving as much at the 

gym as I am if it wasnt for the amazing environment at Arc”

Arc Leisure Customers

“I lost my wife in death to covid been able to join the freedom leisure  

don’t take the pain  away been married  33 years but it helps a little 

to keep a measure of health and purpose  in life been  there for the 

rest of your family”

Bakewell Swimming Pool Customer

96



2021 -2CCu022:  our year in 

numbers 
With the first full year of operation in the post COVID 

times, colleagues have been at the forefront of Freedoms 

mindset.  There has been a big focus in colleague 

engagement and greater awareness of colleagues health. 

Throughout the year there has been some fantastic 

successes with our colleagues and some of them are as 

follows 

• Colleague Promotions – Multiple Colleagues across the 

contract have been recognized for their exceptional work and have 

been promoted. 

• Freedom Influencers – 3 Colleagues locally have become 

Freedom Influencers – A pivotal role in colleague retention and 

colleague happiness. 

• Newly Recruited Positions – Multiple Colleagues have been 

welcomed to the Freedom team.

• Increased Opportunities – The continued growth across 

multiple areas has presented further opportunities to expand the 

workforce.

9

Our staff

97



2021 -2CCu022:  our year in 

numbers 

Customer feedback

I think it is important to feedback when a colleague is making a real, 

tangible difference to people of all fitness levels. Paul is friendly, 

knowledgeable and energises us with his positive attitude and cleverly 

constructed classes. He is committed and consistent in his approach 

and strives to make each class enjoyable with fitness advice and new 

techniques to keep interest high. I wanted to take the time to 

recognise Paul’s skills from a customer’s perspective, it is evident how 

much energy and commitment he gives to his job and the customers 

he works with. Freedom Leisure organisation is well represented with 

front line staff members like Paul promoting fitness positively. Hoping 

this unsolicited feedback is helpful; perhaps to pique thoughts of the 

best use of your positive resources within an organisation and new 

opportunities that may arise as Freedom Leisure continues to 

develop its footprint at Arc Matlock. I trust you will share this 

feedback with Paul, thank you. With very best wishes Pip Wolfenden

Press coverage 

There has been some recent 

positive PR shared locally in 

partnership with DDDC.  There has 

been nomination of Ashbourne air 

source heat pump project to the 

Regional Project of the year awards 

and Arc Leisure recently had Adam 

Peaty surprise the city of Derby 

Swimming Club and visit the centre.

Website and customer communication 

During the re-opening phase communication via the 

website was crucial to re-engaging our customers. 

Through out the year customers have been regularly 

communicated with via e-mail platforms, text 

messaging and more so moving forward will be 

utilised through the app as well.  

Campaigns 

Throughout the year Freedom have 

driven campaigns to promote re 

engagement back into our centres.  The 

message has consistently been around 

health and Freedoms positioning within 

the market place.  

Social Media 

Social Media as always continues to be a 

key driver to support the engagement 

of local community. This has helped 

drive customers back into our centre, 

by sharing the positive impact Freedom 

has on the community. There has been a 

recent campaign around Sharing your 

story, which has displayed individuals 

that have had a positive return from the 

lockdowns

8,405 following (or have liked) our social media pages

36,317 have engaged with our social media pages

319,788 have seen our social media posts 10

Marketing

98



2021 -2CCu022:  our year in 

numbers Over the last 12 months there has been further 

developments that have taken place across the 

Contract, this has been part of the Capital Investment 

that was in place. 

11

Developments

Future developments to be 

carried out in the coming year

Our Gladstone system has been updated to allow us to launch Go 

Learn, which is an in centre and online portal that supports teachers 

in monitoring progress in line with the criteria for the lessons. 

GoLearn also allows parents to log in at home to look at how their 

child is progressing within the lessons. 

To support the drive to decrease energy consumption at site level the 

pool covers at the 3 sites were upgraded – this supports the pools to 

not lose heat over night or when not in use. 

Boulder climbing matts at Wirksworth were identified to be out of 

spec and needed to be upgraded.  They have been upgraded and new 

Matts are in place. 

Ashbourne dry changing vanity area has been identified as an area that will 

be being updated to a similar standard to Bakewell Changing Village – Work 

has been quoted for just awaiting completion. 

Ashbourne Minor Hall is also an area that will be getting updated and 

redecorated in the coming year – this is a much needed modernisation for 

this area.

Arc will be getting access control gates at reception, this will be to help 

monitor attendance, but also to support at busy periods.

99



2021 -2CCu022:  our year in 

numbers 

With year on year comparison being a challenge due to the 

lockdowns in years 20-21 it is easier to compare 19 – 20 with 

current performance.  

Collectively the contract has reduced both Gas and Electric usage 

across the contract reducing Electric Consumption by circa 19% and 

reducing Gas consumption by 7%. 

Each site has had their own wins in certain areas – the use of CHP 

at the Arc, upgrades to lighting, localized management on energy 

usage. 

There will be continued savings in the coming year with the 

Ashbourne Air Source Heat Pumps due to be finished in June,  and 

with Freedoms goal of becoming Net Zero.

12

Energy performance

Arc Ashbourne Bakewell Wirksworth

18-19 Total Consumption 389,298 189,024 96,967 112,554

19-20 Total Consumption 406,192 265,616 107,661 101,029

20-21 Total Consumption 209,657 73,091 42,293 47,156

21-22 Total Consumption 268,631 247,147 110,548 90,427

0
50,000

100,000
150,000
200,000
250,000
300,000
350,000
400,000
450,000

A
xi

s 
Ti

tl
e

Electric (Year)

Arc Ashbourne Bakewell Wirksworth

18-19 Total Consumption 3,730,895 653,653 314,784 295,282

19-20 Total Consumption 3,466,936 827,561 453,857 216,793

20-21 Total Consumption 1,373,863 243,238 72,245 39,563

21-22 Total Consumption 3,140,489 779,332 448,916 225,104

0
500,000

1,000,000
1,500,000
2,000,000
2,500,000
3,000,000
3,500,000
4,000,000

A
xi

s 
Ti

tl
e

Gas (Year)

100



101



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Levelling Up Fund Round 2 Bid Submission
	levelling up fund ROUND 2 BID SUBMISSION
	PURPOSE OF REPORT
	RECOMMENDATION
	WARDS AFFECTED
	STRATEGIC LINK
	7	RISK ASSESSMENT
	8	OTHER CONSIDERATIONS
	CONTACT INFORMATION
	ATTACHMENTS

	Levelling Up Fund Round 2 Bid Submission - Appendix 1
	Levelling Up Fund Round 2 Bid Submission - Appendix 2

	7 Parish Council Reimbursable Expenditure Scheme
	NOT CONFIDENTIAL – For public release
	Community & Environment Committee
	29 June 2022
	Report of the Director of Resources
	PARISH COUNCIL REIMBURSABLE EXPENDITURE SCHEME
	PURPOSE OF REPORT
	RECOMMENDATION

	That the application from Calver Parish Council for funding maintenance of the village green be refused.
	WARDS AFFECTED

	Calver
	STRATEGIC LINK

	The village green belongs to Calver Parish Council but would contribute towards Keeping the Derbyshire Dales Green and improving the health and wellbeing of people who use it.
	1	REPORT
	1.1	The Council has a parish council reimbursable expenditure scheme. The intention of the scheme is to support parish councils financially where they maintain burial grounds and playing fields.
	1.2	On 5th June 2008, the Community and Environment Committee considered a report of the former Community and Environment Overview Committee following a Scrutiny Key Challenge of Parish Council Reimbursable Expenditure. The Committee resolved:
	1.3	“That the Council does not automatically assume the maintenance costs for any new facilities, i.e. playing fields, with any such request to be considered by the appropriate Policy Committee of the Council”.
	1.4	An application has been received from Calver Parish Council for the Council to provided additional funding of approximately £1,300 (75% of £1700) in 2022/23 in respect of the additional cost of maintaining their new village green. A copy of the request is including at Appendix 1. The element for which the Parish Council has applied for funding is 75% of the cost of grass cutting contracts.
	1.5	In considering the application, the following points should be borne in mind:

	2	RISK ASSESSMENT

	Legal
	2.1	This report is focused on a Parish Council’s request for additional funds to cover expenditure in the current year. The report in itself does not raise any specific Legal issues as the decision is for the District Council to make as opposed to an obligation. Therefore the Legal risk at this time has been assessed as Low.

	Financial
	2.2	There is no budgetary provision for further commitments under the parish council reimbursable expenditure scheme. While the cost of approving this request might be low, there is a risk that there would be an expectation of support for future years and that it would set a precedent and other parish councils would come forward with similar requests or with requests for increased support. Therefore the financial risk is assessed as medium.
	3	OTHER CONSIDERATIONS
	3.1	In preparing this report, the relevance of the following factors has also been considered: prevention of crime and disorder, equalities, environmental, health, human rights, personnel and property.
	3.2	Climate Change: This report refers to an application to provide financial support towards the maintenance of a village green. The village green is owned by Calver Parish Council and it is understood by officers that the Parish Council will maintain it whatever decision this Committee makes regarding funding.  There is no proposed change to the use of the land at this time. Therefore, no climate change impact assessment is required.

	4	CONTACT INFORMATION
	4.1	Karen Henriksen - Director of Resources Telephone: 01629 761284 Email: karen.henriksen@derbyshiredales.gov.uk

	5	BACKGROUND PAPERS
	5.1	None

	6	ATTACHMENTS
	6.1	Appendix 1 – Letter from Calver Parish Council dated 17 March 2022


	Parish Council Reimbursable Expenditure Scheme - Appendix 1

	8 Air Quality Management Area, Ashbourne - Updating Report
	NOT CONFIDENTIAL – For public release
	Community and Environment Committee
	29 June 2022
	Report of the Director of Regulatory Services
	AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT AREA, ASHBOURNE – UPDATING REPORT
	PURPOSE OF REPORT

	This report updates Members on the actions taken following the declaration of an Air Quality Management Area in Ashbourne at the meeting of this Committee on 7 April 2021.
	RECOMMENDATION

	That members note the actions taken in progressing the action plan process
	WARDS AFFECTED

	Ashbourne North
	STRATEGIC LINK
	1	BACKGROUND
	1.1	At the meeting of the Community and Environment Committee held on 7 April 2021 it was resolved to declare an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) in respect of the following area:
		Buxton Road from the junction with Windmill Lane and North Avenue, to the junction with St John’s Street;



		St John’s Street from number 22 St John’s Street to the junction with Cokayne Avenue and Park Road.
	1.2	The AQMA was declared in relation to exceedances of the annual average air quality objective for nitrogen dioxide (40µgm-3) and the area was defined to include all areas in which levels of nitrogen dioxide came within 10% of the air quality objective (ie that were likely to exceed 36µgm-3).  The AQMA is formally known as the Derbyshire Dales District Council Air Quality Management Area (No 2; NO2) Order 2021 and came into effect on 5 May 2021.

	1.3	At the 7 April 2021 meeting it was agreed that quarterly updating reports would be submitted to further meetings of this Committee.  A first update was provided at the meeting of this Committee on 23 June 2021, a second update was given on 17 November 2021 and a third on 23 February 2022.  This report is the fourth update.
	2	REPORT
	2.1	Following the meeting on 7 April 2021, Officers contacted Derbyshire County Council’s Transport team and began the process of progressing an action plan.  This conversation had been ongoing for some time, as liaison had been necessary to obtain the traffic figures necessary to undertake the Detailed Assessment.  However, it was agreed that it would now be appropriate to hold an Action Plan inception meeting.  This meeting was held on 13 May 2021 and it was agreed that the team would follow the model used for the creation of other AQMA Action Plans in Derbyshire, that is that a long list of all possible options would be devised and that this would then be evaluated to determine which of these options might be suitable for Ashbourne.  It was also agreed that representatives from Ashbourne Town Council and Ashbourne Town Team would be involved in the Action Plan process.  A series of meetings would be needed in order to produce the final approved Action Plan and to monitor the actions agreed as part of the Plan.
	2.2	In order to manage the Action Plan process, officers have set up a simple action log to record progress.  This action log is a live document and will become of more use as the Action Plan process develops.  However, it is reproduced below in order to provide Committee with an update at this stage:
	2.3	As can be seen from the table above, the shortlist of proposed actions has been received from Derbyshire County Council and has been shared with the working group.  This shortlist has been discussed with the group and worked up into an early draft of the Air Quality Action Plan, which has also been shared with the group.  The intention is to work through the options available to produce a final draft of the Action Plan, which will then be presented to a future meeting of this Committee, before submission to DEFRA.


	2.4	In the meantime, preparatory works have been commenced to consider how one of the recommendations, relating to the tree canopy towards the top of the area covered by the Air Quality Management Area, can be thinned in order to enable better dispersion and dilution of nitrogen dioxide.
	3	RISK ASSESSMENT
	3.1	Legal


	This report is updating members on the progress for officers on implementing the Air Quality Management Plan as per its statutory obligations, therefore the legal risk is low.
	3.2	Financial

	The costs of monitoring air quality can be accommodated from the existing budgets. The financial risk is, therefore, assessed as low.
	4	OTHER CONSIDERATIONS
	4.1	In preparing this report, the relevance of the following factors has also been considered: prevention of crime and disorder, equalities, environmental, climate change, health, human rights, personnel and property.
	4.2	The approved Climate Change Impact Assessment Tool has been completed for this report and is reproduced below.  This identifies that the AQMA action plan has the potential to decrease emissions from vehicles travelling through the area.  However, since the action is aimed at reducing emissions in one particular area it may not result in an overall reduction in vehicle use, so much as a shift to other routes.  However, it is suggested that progressing and publicising this work could result in raising awareness around the impacts of travel on emissions that impact on climate change.

	5	CONTACT INFORMATION
	5.1	Tim Braund, Director of Regulatory Services, Tel: 01629 761118, Email: tim.braund@derbyshiredales.gov.uk


	Amanda Goodwill, Environmental Health Manager, Tel: 01629 761316, Email: amanda.goodwill@derbyshiredales.gov.uk
	Karen Carpenter, Environmental Health Officer, Tel: 01629 761227, Email: karen.carpenter@derbyshiredales.gov.uk
	6	BACKGROUND PAPER
	6.1	None

	7	ATTACHMENTS
	7.1	None



	9 Annual Leisure Report 2021/22
	NOT CONFIDENTIAL – For public release
	Report of the Director of Community & Environmental Services
	ANNUAL LEISURE REPORT 2021/22

	PURPOSE OF REPORT
	4	OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

	Rebecca Cummins, Community Development Manager.
	Telephone: 01629 761385
	Email: rebecca.cummins@derbyshiredales.gov.uk
	6	BACKGROUND PAPERS

	Annual Leisure Report - Appendix 1




